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CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“C&T" or “the Group”) operate its
business on a vision to build a better world with Information Technology.
Since our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 00046) in 1998, C&T has committed
to providing best-of-breed software products and cloud services from
enterprise information management to human resources management,
procurement management, retail management and cyber intelligence to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

C&T's software products and related services have been widely adopted
across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to multinational
corporations and government organisations. Leveraging C&T's products
and services, our customers are enhancing their business and operation
covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including clothing,
food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and professional
services.

With decades of successful track records in delivering innovative and
mission-critical IT solutions to enterprises and government organisations,
the Group has been providing professional IT services to most of the
bureaus and departments of the Hong Kong SAR Government for
improving their public services. Over 10,000 companies have adopted our
online platform for Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") to
process trade-related documents.

Our credentials include the award-winning electronic tendering system
running on premises and cloud platforms supporting procurements worth
billions of dollars, the customer care and billing system that facilitates water
supplies to more than two million households in Hong Kong SAR through
our managed IT services, and the flagship HRM software that processes
payroll every month for millions of employee accounts of our clients.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (CONTINUED)
NERIEN (E)

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and cyber security. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in relation to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Stepping up the efforts through years, C&T has built solid corporate
governance and a robust risk and compliance framework. We play our part
to build a better world for current and future generations and encourage
our staff to contribute to the local communities. The Group'’s efforts to
develop a sustainable society is witnessed by various market recognitions
over the years.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in enterprise
information management, human resources management, procurement
management, retail management and cyber intelligence, C&T is committed
to providing all our clients with best-of-breed software products and high
quality system development and related services and, putting all these
together, to building a better world with Information Technology for all of
us.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEER(E)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLHEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-hEFE ZE-EF — - —& ZZE-=
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEETL BEBT BEBT BEET
Revenue WA 2759 2563 265.5 268.7 257.5
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 5 &l 4F & )i 7 559 60.1 538 470 33.4
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
il il il Pl =1
Basic earnings per share FRERZF
("EPS") ([ERERRF]) 226 243 218 19.0 13.5
Interim dividends HEARR B 90 50 6.0 6.5 5.5
Final dividends REARR B 80 120 1.0 75 5.5
Special dividend R RIAR &, - - = 50 =
Dividends per share BRRE
('DPS") =33:89)) 17.0 17.0 170 19.0 11.0
Revenue Profit attributable to shareholders EPS vs DPS
g A % R FEAE F E R T EREXBIHEHERKE
HK$M HK$M HK Cent EPS RS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE|E

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group recorded the total revenue of HK$257.5 million (2022: HK$268.7
million) during the reporting period amid the slower-than-expected post-
Covid economic recovery in Mainland China and the higher-for-longer
interest rate environment. Affected by increased staff costs in product
development and project delivery, the gross profit also dropped by HK$9.2
million, or 6.3% to HK$135.8 million (2022: HK$145.0 million).

On the other hand, benefiting from the improved bank interest income, the
Group experienced an increase of HK$2.6 million in other income and gains,
bringing the total to HK$16.3 million (2022: HK$13.6 million). The improved
interest income compensated the absent of government subsidies under
Employment Support Scheme of the preceding year. As a result of poor
market sentiment, the valuation of the Group’s financial assets and
investment property recorded an aggregate loss of HK$3.1 million (2022:
HKS$2.4 million).

Resulting from the completion of software enhancement project (the
"Project”) for the Customer Care and Billing System (“CCBS") of the
Water Supplies Department last year, the Group recorded an increase in
the amortisation of deferred development costs. Moreover, the inflated
staff costs also contributed to the increase in overall operation expenses
(included selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative
expenses, net, finance cost and other expenses) by HK$5.6 million, reaching
HKS$111.2 million (2022: HK$105.7 million).

Considering the factors mentioned above, the Group'’s consolidated net
profit attributable to shareholders decreased HK$13.7 million, or 29.1%, to
HK$33.4 million (2022: HK$47.0 million). The basic earnings per share also
fell to 13.50 HK cents (2022: 19.02 HK cents) per ordinary share.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group has consistently generating positive cash inflows from its
operations and maintained a strong financial position. Considered the
current and future operations, the Board has announced the declaration
of a final dividend of 5.5 HK cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: final dividend of 7.5 HK cents and special dividend
of 5 HK cents). Combining the previously paid interim dividend of 5.5 HK
cents (2022: 6.5 HK cents) and the proposed final dividend, the Group’s
total annual dividends will amount to 11 HK cents (2022: 19 HK cents) per
ordinary share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software
Although the weak market sentiment has caused delay in purchase

decisions of enterprise customers, the Group’'s Application Software!
business continues to receive stable recurring income from software
annuity and Software as a Service's (“SaaS") subscription services from the
established customer base.

The Group’s Human Resources Management Software ("HRMS”)
business in Hong Kong continued to benefit from sustainable demand for
version upgrade as well as add-on software and services from its existing
customers. However, the order backlog from new customers carried over
from previous year was decreased and new market demand was soft
leading to a lower professional service revenue. As a result, it has reported
a drop in revenue compared to last year and lower profit contribution to
the Group during the reporting period. The performance of the Group's
HRMS business in Mainland China was also affected by the weak market
sentiment and keen competitions, which experienced a drop in revenue as
compared to last year. Across Hong Kong and Mainland China, the HRMS
business team acquired a number of sizable new orders from customers
from various business sectors, including foreign banking corporations, large
hotel chain, multi-national manufacturers, professional service providers,
fintech companies as well as large F&B and retail chains.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The Group'’s enterprise software businesses attained mixed performance
among various product lines but attained an overall improved contribution
to the Group. Benefiting from results of the expedited effort in improving
project delivery effectiveness, the businesses improved performance
materially in the second half of the year with a more cost-effective
structure. In particular, the performance of Enterprise Procurement
Management Software ("EPMS”) business showed sustainable demands
from both business enterprises and public organisations on compliance of
procurement processes. During the reporting period, the business grew
its recurring SaaS and maintenance income encouragingly by more than
28% year-on-year, as well as attaining remarkable growth in professional
service revenue despite the resource constraint. Benefiting from its stable
recurring maintenance income and new contracts from customers with
demand for digital transformation, information repositories and compliance
initiatives, the Enterprise Information Management Software ("EIMS”)
business managed to maintain its profit contribution to the Group during
the reporting period. The Enterprise Retail Management Software ("ERMS”)
business attained a lower revenue contribution compared with the same
period last year due to the weak market sentiment of the retail industry.
However, with stepped up management effort to streamline operation
structure, the business managed to contribute considerable profit to the
Group.

As a new technology arm specialising in Artificial Intelligence ("Al")
and Natural Language Processing (“NLP"), the performance and
contributions of CISC Limited remained steady during the reporting
period. The Group is actively exploring new application domains in Al and
NLP areas, not limited to public sector but extending to usage in certain
commercial sectors like financial and construction industries.

The Group continued to leverage its research and development (“R&D")
resources in the Greater Bay Area for development of innovative software
based on latest technologies. Within the product roadmap, the Group aims
to launch a revolutionary Human Capital Management ("HCM") Saa$S
platform based on cloud-native technologies in the first half of 2024. With
this new platform, the Group not only can improve its competitiveness
for capturing new businesses in Mainland China and the Hong Kong SAR,
but also pave the way for expanding our business to the overseas market.
The new software platform is built with modular architecture, enabling
the Group to further expand our enterprise applications portfolio, develop
synergies amongst other enterprise software of the Group, and improve
our Saa$ business model by streamlining the delivery process to enable the
success of our enterprise customers’ digital transformation. Furthermore,
the R&D team is also designing our future products by increasingly
utilising intensified Generative Al and Large Language Model ("LLM")
technologies.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services
Despite the Group's Solutions and Integration Services® business

experienced a mild decrease in revenue, amounting to HKS$6.5 million
or 6.0%, resulting in a total revenue of HK$102.8 million (2022: HK$109.4
million), it has demonstrated improved operations efficiency and
resilience to market sentiment with an achievement of an improved
profit performance. The CCBS project of the Managed Services®? business
continued to contributed good recurring revenue during the reporting
year. Besides sustained professional services and maintenance income from
our key enterprise customers in the public sector, the Group successfully
secured new projects through its ongoing engagement with various
government departments as well as multi-year framework contracts
with semi-government organisations. In particular, the Development
Services? business successfully implemented a smart integrated revenue
management system for a public transportation body in Hong Kong, which
is expected to generate additional SaaS revenue in the coming years. The
business also secured multiple new projects from various government
departments. This highlights the ability of the business to continue playing
an important role in the HKSAR Government (the “Government”) smart city
and digital government initiatives.

The Integration Services®? business faced sluggish performance during the
reporting year, resulting in an immaterial loss.

e-Service and related business
The import and export activities of the business were persistently hindered

by slow economic growth throughout the reporting year. As a result, the
revenue of the Group’s GETS business experienced a slight decline in 2023.
Despite the sales decline, by implementing cost management initiatives
the business was able to mitigate the impact of revenue drop to maintain
a stable contribution to overall financial performance. In addition, the
business also managed to increase its market share during the reporting
period.

The business has held a licence granted by the Government (“GETS
Licence”) since 2004. This licence allows the Group to provide front-
end Government Electronic Trading Services for processing specific official
trade-related documents. In mid-2023, the Government further extended
the Group’s GETS Licence validity for an additional three years until
the end of 2027. With the Government's new Trade Single Window
("“TSW”) initiative, the management is actively evaluating future
customer demands in order to develop new value-added services to enable
smooth transition and maximise our business opportunities when TSW is
launched subsequently.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investments
The weak market sentiment and underperforming investment market had

negatively impacted the valuation of the Group's investment properties and
financial assets. Consequently, downward adjustments were made and led
to a loss of HK$1.0 million for the Investments segment for the reporting
year (2022: HK$0.1 million).

Subsequently to the reporting year end, the Group had further trimmed
down its investment properties and disposed an office premises in the PRC
to an independent third party for a consideration of approximately RMB2.6
million.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the management believes the business momentum will
gradually be accelerated with its strengthened go-to-market activities.
Besides, with the enhanced software product portfolio featuring a cloud-
native architecture, the Group is confident in enhancing our Saa$ offerings
and uplifting growing recurring revenue.

To cope with the increasing demand on Al applications, the management
will put in R&D resources to apply Generative Al and LLM technologies in
our specialised domains in order to further expand our market not only in
the Greater China but also overseas region.

For the Solutions business, we will continue to leverage our professional
IT knowledge, strong customer references as well as proven successful
delivery model to further grow the business. In particular, the Group will
consolidate its resources to expend its business in managed infrastructure,
managed cloud as well as managed security services going forward.

To address the IT resources shortage and increasing staff costs in Hong
Kong, the Group has been increasing the scale of its software development
centres in Mainland China especially in the Greater Bay Area. Such move
has strengthened our delivery capability and gradually mitigated the cost
pressure and resources constraint in Hong Kong. The management believes
the development centres will become a strong support for the Group to
develop best-of-breed products as well as capturing the market potential
competitively.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

PROSPECT (CONTINUED)

All in all, despite economic recovery and consumer sentiment remaining
uncertain, the Group is still confident in its growth potential via our
investment in R&D to enhance our product portfolio, by leveraging our
stable customer base and revenue streams with strong recurring nature,
as well as strengthened go-to-market approaches. On the other hand,
the efforts made by the Group to improve operational efficiency and its
business expansion plan to the Greater Bay Area will also make additional
contribution to the Group in the coming future.

Footnotes:

t The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of enterprise
application software and e-business services for enterprises including the provision
of (i) enterprise application software (including SaaS product offering) with
implementation and ongoing support services for Human Resource Management,
Enterprise Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the “Application Software”); and (ii)
the Government Electronic Trading Services ("GETS"), cloud services and other
related value-added services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development (including SaaS product offering); (i) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; and (iii)
Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit
Due to slower than expected economic recovery and high interest rates

environment, the Group recorded a drop in total revenue by HK$11.2
million, or 4.2%, to HK$257.5 million (2022: HK$268.7 million) during the
reporting year. The increased staff costs in product development and
project delivery added additional pressures on the gross profit, caused a
reduction in overall profitability by HK$9.2 million, or 6.3% to HK$135.8
million (2022: HK$145.0 million) in 2023. The gross profit margin also slightly
declined to 52.8% (2022: 54.0%).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Non-operating income and gains, net (included other
income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,

net and fair value losses, net)
The improved bank interest income contributed to the increase in other

income and gains of the Group by HK$2.6 million to HK$16.3 million (2022:
HK$13.6 million).

Conversely, the Group's financial assets and investment properties
triggered fair value losses of HK$3.1 million (2022: HK$2.4 million) due to
downward valuations caused by the poor market sentiment.

Operation expenses (included selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, net,

finance cost and other expenses)
The adoption of mandatory provident fund (“MPF") offsetting abolition

effect into calculation of employee retirement benefit obligations and the
update in the policy regarding allowance of unused paid annual leave
carrying forward contributed to non-recurring rise in staff costs.

Inflated staff costs and the uptake of the increased amortisation of deferred
development costs generally jetted up the overall operation expenses by
HK$5.6 million, reaching HK$111.2 million (2022: HK$105.7 million).

The income tax expense was comparable to same period last year.

Net profit
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company fell by 29.1% to HK$33.4

million (2022: HK$47.0 million) resulting from the drop in gross profit
and the increase in expenses. The net profit margin (profit for the period
attributable to shareholders divided by the revenue) also dropped to 13.0%
(2022: 17.5%) which is in line with the decrease in profit for the year.

Non-current assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets, depreciation of right-of-use assets

and investment properties’ valuation adjustment mainly contributed to the
reduction in the non-current assets by HK$19.2 million, or 7.2% to HK$246.6
million (31 December 2022: HK$265.8 million).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current assets
The current assets slightly dropped by HK$4.8 million, or 1.2% to HK$407.9

million (31 December 2022: HK$412.7 million). The change was mainly
the mixed effects of the decrease in trade receivables and the increase in
contract assets and cash and bank balances.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities
The Group's current and non-current liabilities slightly dropped by HK$6.9

million, or 4.4% to HK$148.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$155.4 million).
The fall was in line with the decrease in contract liabilities, lease liabilities
and deferred tax liabilities.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets of the Applications Services and Solutions and Integration

Services businesses decreased due to amortisation of other intangible
assets and drop of trade receivables.

The segment liabilities of the Applications Services business grew in line
with increase in lease liabilities.

Segment liabilities of the Solutions and Integration Services business
dropped in line with decrease in both trade payables and lease liabilities.

Segment assets of the Investments business dropped as both investment
properties and financial assets recorded valuation losses in 2023.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent dropped to HK$504.7

million (31 December 2022: HK$521.6 million).

The moderate reduction was primarily due to the net profit earned in 2023,
the repurchase of shares, the purchase of shares held under the restricted
share award scheme, and the payment of dividends, including the final and
special dividends for 2022 and the interim dividend for 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$62.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$63.5 million),
listed equity securities of HK$2.2 million (31 December 2022: HKS$4.2 million)
and bank balances of HK$0.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$1.0 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$111.9 million (31 December 2022: HK$111.9 million) of
which HK$21.1 million (31 December 2022: HK$21.3 million) have been
utilised as at 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were
HKS$316.1 million (31 December 2022: HK$309.8 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group has been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2022: Nil). The Group's current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2022: 3.0) and its gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.7% (31 December
2022:22.9%).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the
Group to reward their performance and contributions.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 343 full time employees and
12 part time employees (31 December 2022: 361 full time employees and
12 part time employees).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company operates a share award scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the employees who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations as well as to retain
them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting year and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 5.5 HK
cents (2022: a final dividend of 7.5 HK cents and a special dividend of 5 HK
cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 5.5 HK cents (2022: a
final dividend of 7.5 HK cents and a special dividend of 5 HK cents) per
ordinary share payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 11 June 2024. The
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 29
May 2024 to Monday, 3 June 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting (“the AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM to be held on Monday, 3 June 2024, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 28 May 2024. In addition, the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 7 June 2024 to
Tuesday, 11 June 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June 2024. During such periods, no share
transfer will be effected. The final dividend will be distributed on or about
Monday, 24 June 2024 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 11 June 2024.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls. As of 31 December 2023, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed risk management and internal controls and
financial reporting matters related to the preparation of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2024
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 62, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir.
Ng holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree in Computer Science
from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom and has over 30
years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the Company, Ir. Ng
held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia Pacific
Limited and Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited. Ir. Ng is the Honorary Fellow of
Vocational Training Council and the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Ir. Ng was also the awardees of “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong’, “Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Award of Hong Kong”and “Directors of the Year Awards”.

Ir. Ng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, the controlling
shareholder of Chao Lien Technologies Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company) and the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 60, was the Group's Chief Executive Officer
and is now responsible for overseas business development. Mr. Cheung
has over 30 years of experience in IT and consulting business ranging from
software development to enterprise solutions implementation and is one of
the founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd. (the “Y&A"). Mr. Cheung
joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the Group.
Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in both Hong Kong
and Australia. Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science
and an Executive Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has also completed the Management
of Technology Program at the Centre for Executive Education, University of
California Berkeley.

Mr. Cheung is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Leung King San Sunny, aged 62, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM
and its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Simon Fraser University in
Canada.

Mr. Leung is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and the
brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEERE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Ng is a director and/or the secretary of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, aged 52, joined the Board in 2022. She is
the Vice-Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of Lee Kee Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 637), responsible for proposing
strategies and ensuring the implementation of the strategies and policies of
the group. In 2018, Ms. Chan was awarded the Medal of Honour by HKSAR
Government. She is a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and
its Subsidised Housing Committee, the Operations Review Committee of
Independent Commission Against Corruption, the Steering Committee on
the Child Development Fund of Hong Kong Labour and Welfare Bureau,
the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee, the Green Technology and
Finance Development Committee of Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership Task Force on
Trade and Investment under the HKTDC Belt and Road & Greater Bay Area
Committee, as well as the Council Member of Hong Kong Productivity
Council. She is also a director of Nano and Advanced Materials Institute
Limited. Besides, she serves as an Executive Deputy Chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Industries. Ms. Chan holds a Master of Social Science Degree
in Global Political Economy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
is an Industrial Fellow of WMG at the University of Warwick.

Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey, aged 65, joined the board on 20 March 2023.
Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in the IT industry and has held
various leadership roles in renowned businesses of technology solutions
and outsourcing services such as Hewlett Packard Hong Kong Limited and
Oracle Systems Hong Kong Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from The University of Surrey.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 70, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant by profession and has over 40 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and management. He is currently a non-executive director
of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116)
and holds independent non-executive directorship in five other listed
companies namely, China SCE Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited
(Stock Code: 1666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chung Kin Yip, aged 49, the Group's Chief Executive Officer, is in
charge of the business operations of Application Services, Solutions and
Integration Services, and various corporate functions including human
resources, management information systems, marketing, and research and
development of the Group. He has over 25 years of ICT industry experience
specialising in digital transformation, IT outsourcing and managed services,
and customer communications management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Chung held various key positions under the scope of business development
and marketing, sales team management, solutions consultancy, and services
delivery in companies such as FUJIFILM Business Innovation, Microsoft,
and PCCW. Mr. Chung graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor's Degree in Physics & Electronic Engineering and obtained his
Master's Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong Steve, aged 58, the Group’s Senior Vice
President, is in charge of the corporate development as well as Application
Software business units of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in
1998 and has over 30 years of IT experience in general management. He
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies and received a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Yeung is a director of CISC Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Ng Ka Yan Karen, aged 47, the Group's General Manager of
enterprise software, leads the operations and growth of the Group's
enterprise software businesses. Having joined the Group in 2019, Ms.
Ng brought with her 20 years of extensive business experience from
international software and solution companies. Ms. Ng graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Arts and a Master
Degree in Science.

Mr. Poon Chi Shing Anthony, aged 51, the Group’s Vice President, is in
charge of the Solutions Services business of the Group. Mr. Poon joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 20 years of experience in IT industry. Mr. Poon
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in
Computing Science.

Dr. Zhong Shi James, aged 48, the Group's Head of Product Research
& Development, joined the Group in 2022 and has more than 20 years
of hands-on experience in information technology, including 12 years of
solid experience in a software development life cycle management role
and 6 years of dedication to semantic NLP and Python machine learning
techniques. He obtained his Ph.D. and M.Sc. from the Department of
Computer Science, School of Informatics at the University of Edinburgh,
United Kingdom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated
in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the
reporting year except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Board considered that the powers and authorities have not been
concentrated as all major decisions have been made in consultation with
the Board and appropriate Board committees, as well as top management.
In addition, there are three independent non-executive directors on the
Board offering their experience, expertise, independent advice and views
from different perspectives. The Board is therefore of the view that there are
adequate balance of power and safeguards in place.

The Board reviewed the scope of operation and management structure of
the Group and considered the current organisation structure was effective
and there is no imminent need to appoint a CEO. However, the Board
continued to review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and considered whether any change, including the appointment
of CEQ, is necessary.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 18 August
2023 in relation to the appointment of a CEQ, Mr. Chung Kin Yip has been
appointed as the CEO of the Group to manage day-to-day business with
effect from 1 September 2023.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises four executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors ("INEDs"):

Executive Directors:

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara

Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey (appointed on 20 March 2023)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the INEDs is a
professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of
the Listing Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including INEDs) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) as amended from time to time and the CG Code.
Retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
at which they retire. Any director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject
to re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate
resolutions have been proposed for the election of each director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board nomination policy
The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high

integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen
fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgement, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will
be assessed in the context of the then-current composition in the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this assessment,
the Nomination Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity (including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service)
and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a
balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Nomination process
The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board

has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
director candidates, including recommendations from Board members,
management and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the shareholders,
are evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the director
qualifications. While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria through review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks.

The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish the relative
weighing of such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
gender, age, knowledge, skills and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Group's business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a

minimum to be required of any Board members in recommending to the
Board potential new board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

broad experience in business and the ability to provide insights and
practical wisdom based on their experience and expertise;

the highest professional and personal ethics and in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

with sufficient time to carry out their duties effectively and to make
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and to assist and support management of the Group.

Board Diversity Policy
The Company noted that that people from different backgrounds and with

different professional and life experience are likely to approach problems
in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board with diverse
backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions to the table, and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)
The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the

Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the approximate
mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary
core competence for informed decision making and effective functioning.
The Company adopted its own Board Diversity Policy and recognises the
benefits of having diversity in the composition of the Board.

The board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among other
things, the gender, age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service of each director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises seven directors and is
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, length of service, educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge.

Composition of the diversified Board

Exe (A

EEESULBEE (H)
REZECBFEEEFTONMEN  UERE

SABBEENERANBLE R YHEET
RERRRBBEEMBFENNZOES - K
AREFAEBFEFES LR YERES
SHKZTEM R

EFRZERDESE (RPRE) ZEH 2
Bl ER - MEEER ERAR R AP
REHEE  ARAAT 2 EHHRRE TR
Bk AR -

R-ZZBE-_=F+-A=+—0 EFedH+t%H

ERAK BAGTIEMER - F68 - REFH -
HESS HELR  RMRAE -

ZRtEEENARR

Age group Length of services
ES il FR 3 5
Less than 5t010  10years

Name of director Gender 50to 59 60 to 69 70to0 79 5 years years or more
EEns 508595 60Z69% 70E79% DPRSF  S5E10F 10FHMUL
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing SEBEETIEM  Male L2 v v
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE Male s v v
Mr. Leung King San Sunny RENESE Male 2 v v
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REBLAE Male g v v
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara B+ Female & v v
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey ELBRE Male [:2 v v
Mr.Ting Leung Huel Stephen T RIBSL4 Male g v v

g 2R BB R AR T SFER



28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)

Educational background

HEES

Name of director Accountancy

EEpng

Ir.Ng Cheung Shing REBEETRM

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERLE

Mr. Leung King San Sunny REMEE

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REIEEHE 4
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara R 0 3 22 +

Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey BEOBEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRERE v

Gk e

E=g(#)
ZRtESENAR (&)

Professional experience

Directorship
experience
with other
Accounting listed
Others  and finance IT company(ies)
REAME
EHAFE
Hit @&#keR EANE HNESLR
4
4
v v
v
v v
v
v v

The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board'’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 19 to 22. Two executive directors, Ir. Ng
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy,
annual budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of
directors, significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant
policies and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations
and administration to the Group's management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and

CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long
term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation of the
Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group
and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO
mainly focuses on the business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

GENDER DIVERSITY

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. As
of 31 December 2023, the Board comprises seven directors, including six
male and one female. The Board is of the view that it has achieved gender
diversity and will take opportunity to enhance the proportion of female
members over time when selecting and making recommendation on
suitable candidates for Board appointments.

Our workforce comprised of 65% male and 35% female as of the year end
date. Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data
are set out in the “Environment, Social and Governance Report” on pages
50 to 95. The Board considered that the composition of the workforce
were sufficiently diversified in terms of gender in the context of a company
operating in the [T sector.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under
the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group's performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Leung King San Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Ms. Chan Yuen
Shan Clara, Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development, including
the training provided by the Company on 29 November 2023, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Directors (in
person or through electronic means of communication) held at least four
regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational matters and financial performance of the
Group. Attendance of each director at the Board meetings is set out below:

EXEERRHERR

REBRKEZLEER EF(RFHFEIE
BEFBASIN) ZIBOTHREHNEH 08
FoR IwmASREEERBEANELEERE
MBERR -BEFHFEFTEIRIBERHT
L

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESRRE
A R
Executive directors: BITES:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman) RERBEETIRM(EEF) 5/5
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam REREE 5/5
Mr. Leung King San Sunny RE2FEAE 4/5
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REJREA 5/5
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 15 3 22 & 5/5
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew TR
(retired on 5 June 2023) (RZZBE_=ZFARABLMT) 2/2
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey EIBRE
(appointed on 20 March 2023) (RZZE-=F=A-1+BEZE) 3/3
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 5/5

The Chairman also met with the INEDs without the presence of other
directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Investment Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.

ETRNTEEMESIES TRBYIFNTES
i

EEZETE

RMBEZTGZHBE REFEZTREZAE
EF5Z8g WERZBEE REZBE® =&
ZZEBEe FWZEekAREEZES &
JE1T TR B RE

g 2R BB R AR T SFER
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999. During the
reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs, namely, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On
Matthew and Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey. Mr. Ting is currently the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation of
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic means of
communication) at least twice every year. Attendance of each director at
the meeting is set out below:

EREEE (H)

ERZEEBFARTRIMAEHE (R
FHEBETRASIR)  BEFELRERZ
BRI

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBERE
] R
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 2/2
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara R 1o 3} 22 &= 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew PR RHIE
(retired on 5 June 2023) (RZZE_=FAHARMT) 1
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey ELBEAE
(appointed on 20 March 2023) (R—ZE-=F=A-1+BEZE) 1

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group's financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004.
During the reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs,
namely, Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee
Kwok On Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and two executive
directors namely, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny. Mr.
Poon is currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;

FR BRZES (HTEB)BRIREEARE
B GRS BE  EREENMABDEERLS
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) TMHMEES (&)
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non- . MIENTEE 2N RNESTSIREES

executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to . RIEBAR NI REVET 8 R AR T 3l
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share ZREMEMNEGEREERDERND RER
option scheme of the Company; T
to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors . B RERRTEERSREEAER
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or HERSRIEBBREEMALT 2 BEE -
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms N RZEEEERS QB R—8 BEREE
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and HENER - BETFTLATFEERT
BiA% Rk
to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in . BROEWESIEAABRBATTBLRH
deciding his own remunerations. BEEERS ZHM -
The Remuneration Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic THEEeBFARTRL —RXeE FHH
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each FBHREBEFBAIRN) SESHESH
director at the meeting is set out below: BERHINAT :

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HEEBERE
A R E
Executive directors: HITES !
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing KREBLAETZA 3/3
Mr. Leung King San Sunny RE2FEAE 2/3
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 15 3 22 & 3/3
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew TR
(retired on 5 June 2023) (RZZE_=ZFARABERMT) 1
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey EOBRE
(appointed on 20 March 2023) (RZZEZ=F=—A=1+HEZHE 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 3/3
During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee FR - FHNEZESETCIERERIAER
included the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive ZHTEERAREEE (BIETHREE) Hb
directors and senior management (including CEQ), determined their levels HE EEREFZHFHKRKT MEZSRHESR
of remuneration, make recommendations to the Board on the INED's BB IENITE B 5 AN B A RBER B IR
remuneration and approved the grant of shares pursuant to the share D ERENETEIE TR o

award scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out
below:

FMESES (&)
BEEREREER 2HM

BREBEEEERTRIBEISETAMG B2
E_=F+_A=1T-HULEFESREEREMX
BzHMBEFIMT

Number of Individuals
A

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 7 7T 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 7T £ 2,500,000 75 7T 2

Further particulars in relation to directors’and chief executive’s remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004. During
the reporting period, the Committee comprises of four INEDs, namely, Mr.
Poon Siu Hoi Casey, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Professor Lee Kwok On
Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San Sunny. Mr. Poon is
currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

RIEEMRBINEED2BFIHE 2 EE RITHAE
HEWERALESFMNES 2 BHNARKE
BfsE8 k9 o

REEZESE

RELZEER _TETNFNAF+ BN -
REHE ZECANEB I IERITES
ELB/RE REMALL  ZHLZHBERT R
AR MENITE R KRBT E T2
MRSHEEMAK - BLEERIRZEZETH
EERE -

REZEGZIEREBRRE:

ELBFERFEFTGIHE - ABKRAEK
(BHEREE - MB LR E) - WRER
RESARRIZEEREMHEEFTSIE
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gRHER

g 2R BB R AR T SFER

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; in that the Nomination Committee
should always have in mind the factors set out in the Listing Rules;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall set out
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

ii. if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

ii.  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

iv.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to determine the policy for nomination of directors. The policy for
the nomination of directors of the Nomination Committee shall be
disclosed in the annual report of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each
director at the meeting is set out below:

REZESE (A)

%ﬁ:%%%@ﬁ//\g—ﬁé’f—fﬁ’/]\_//\au%(%ﬁ%ﬁ
FEAESTHEMAIN) JSEFHRERZ
FERAEHNT -

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBERE
] R E
Executive directors: HTESE:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing RRBEAETRRM 3/3
Mr. Leung King San Sunny REFEAE 2/3
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 150 3} 22 &= 3/3
Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew TETHIF
(retired on 5 June 2023) (RZZE_=F"ARBEME) 1/1
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey EDBEA
(appointed on 20 March 2023) (RZEZ=F=A=Z1+HEZF) 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRERAE 3/3

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity,
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
INEDs and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of directors, appointment of CEO and succession planning
for chief executive of the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012. During the
reporting period, the Committee comprises of an executive director, Ir.
Ng Cheung Shing and two INEDs, Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew and
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey. Ir. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment
Committee.

The Committee is responsible for, inter alia, identifying investment
opportunities, reviewing investment proposals and making investment
decisions; monitoring the performance of investments; reviewing the
soundness of existing investment portfolio; devising investment guidelines
and strategies for approval of the Board; and executing investment
guidelines approved by the Board. The investment strategy of the Company
is to exercise prudent treasury investment and management involving
diversification of low to moderate risk investments with a view to counter
the depreciating value of cash and to generate stable income to support
existing business operations.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Investment Committee executed the
investment guidelines approved by the Board, reported the performance of
investments and reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the

Board meetings.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016 and
comprises of three executive directors namely, Mr. Leung King San Sunny,
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and Mr. Ng Kwok Keung and one INED, Ms. Chan Yuen
Shan Clara. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk Management

Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group's risk management (“RM") and internal
control (“IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them

to the Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group's risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance

approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels

and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group’s compliance policies and submit them to the

Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group's key risks and submit to the Audit Committee

for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the Risk
Management Committee's belief, the disclosures made in the
annual report on its activities, the risk governance and related

sections are fair, balanced and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;

and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (H)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine
on a case by case basis which Risk Management Committee takes
responsibility for undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the
Audit Committee updated on any relevant findings from reviews
requested.

The Risk Management Committee shall meet (in person or through
electronic means of communication) at least twice every year. Attendance
of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. Leung King San Sunny REFEE

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam SRR A4

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung R B8 % A4
INED: BYFHTES:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara ek 150 3} 22 &=

During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the Group's
risk framework and key risks, RM and IC reports and submitted them to the
Audit Committee for approval.

EREEREE (&)

MEBEZZEEERUABESEFTHRR
EEZEERERT ZEAR  AMEREFA
w2 BRABFZZ B SR MEFIARMEE
o

RREEZBe8FARTRIMAERE (R
GHELBEBEFRATN) JESHES
& IERESIT

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBERE
T R E

2/2
2/2
2/2
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INEDs

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the
INEDs to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

INED WHO HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE
YEARS

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen has served as an INED for more than nine
years. The future appointment of the INED without the approval by way of
passing a separate resolution of the shareholders is regarded as a deviation
from Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, Mr. Ting had retired at the previous
annual general meeting of the Company and offered themselves for
re-election.

The Board considers that although, as stated in the CG Code, serving on the
Board for more than nine years is generally relevant to the determination
of the independence and appropriateness of the proposal for re-election
of an INED, it may not necessarily be meaningful to or to the benefit of the
Company to determine an individual’s appropriateness and independence
arbitrarily on the basis of the length of his/her tenure of service.

The Board adopts a qualitative approach in assessing a candidate'’s
independence and appropriateness with reference to the overall
assessment of all the attributes associated with the recommendation
for re-election of an individual. In the process of assessing a candidate’s
independence, each of the factors referred to in Listing Rule 3.13(1) to (8)
has been carefully and thoroughly assessed and confirmed. In line with this,
the Company recognises the continued independence of Mr. Ting under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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INED WHO HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE
YEARS (CONTINUED)

Having served as an INED, Mr. Ting has brought high standards of corporate
governance to the Company and contributed objectively in advising, as
well as monitoring and mentoring the management of the Company. Being
familiar with the corporate values of the Company, the presence of Mr.
Ting has enhanced these values by his sustained development of a strong
advisory relationship with the Company. Mr. Ting has also provided the
Company with his annual independence confirmation is accordance with
Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider that continued tenure
brings considerable stability to the Board and the Board has benefited
greatly from the presence of Mr. Ting, who has over time gained valuable
insight into the Group, the industry in which it operates, the ordinary affairs
associated with its business and its markets.

Apart from Mr. Ting’s historical valuable contribution to the Group and
his experiences accumulated with regard to the affairs of the Group, in
assessing the proposal for Mr. Ting’s re-election as an INED, the nomination
committee of the Company and the Board have also considered Mr. Ting's
expertise and professional qualifications, his continuous efforts in personal
and professional development and vast experience in the fields of auditing
and accounting, and the holistic view and insight he possesses by way of
sitting in the board of directors of other listed companies in Hong Kong
(which the Company may make use of).

The Board also noted that Mr. Ting has been a professional accountant in
public practice since 1987. The Board considers Mr. Ting, as a professional
who is constantly involved in the provision of impartial advice under
independence requirements and objectivity requirements under
professional rules of conduct, possesses the requisite character and
integrity to retain a high degree of independence and maintain impartiality
despite long-established relationships and familiarity with a certain set of
circumstances.
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INED WHO HAS SERVED AS DIRECTORS FOR SEVEN
LISTED COMPANIES

The CG code provision B.3.4(b) stipulates that where the Board proposes
to elect or re-elect an INED (who will be holding their seventh (or more)
directorship, the Board should explain why such individual would still be
able to devote sufficient time to the board in the relevant shareholders’
circular.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen has served as directors for seven listed
companies. He has maintained his profession in various directorships of
listed companies he served, and has actively participated in the Board
meetings and various committees held by the Company in the past, and so
his time committed for his director’s duties is not affected. The Board further
noted that Mr. Ting has maintained a 100% attendance rate of all the Board
and the relevant Board committee meetings as well as general meetings
of the Company in the preceding financial years. In view of the above, the
Board considers that Mr. Ting is able to devote sufficient time to properly
discharge his responsibilities as an INED.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) and is
disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company may consider whether to pay dividends, if any, twice a year,
which are the interim dividend and final dividend. The Board may declare
special dividends in addition to such dividends as it considers appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

Factors for consideration
In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any

dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall consider the following
factors:

the actual and expected financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”);

economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments
and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the
business;

the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may, based on the above criteria, declare interim dividend (as
it considers appropriate) and recommend final dividend (subject to the
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting). The Company considers
that the dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year and there is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws and regulations, dividends may
be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly or partly in the form of allotment of
shares of the Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws and regulations.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Shareholders Communication Policy

A Shareholders Communication Policy has been adopted by the Company
to ensure balanced and understandable information about the Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments, governance and risk profile) are readily available to the
shareholders.

The Shareholders Communication Policy sets out the framework the
Company has put in place for on-going dialogue with the shareholders
and investment community. According to the policy, information of
the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders through
a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company'’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general
meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders'needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2023 (“the AGM") was held on 5 June
2023. All directors, namely Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, Mr.
Leung King San Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Mr.
Poon Siu Hoi Casey and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, and the Company’s
external auditor attended the AGM (in person or through electronic means
of communication).

During the year, the Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy. With the above
measures in place, the Shareholders Communication Policy is considered
to have been effectively implemented.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders’ Rights
According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”)

and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors'Report on pages 117 to 125.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group's performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’ interests and value. The Company operates
within overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board.
Each transaction is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks
involved. Responsibility for managing risks lies initially with the business
functions concerned, working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance
established by the Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
(including Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") risks). The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material
noncompliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective
measures are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group’s preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management framework
The Group has established an effective risk governance and management

framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules and
other regulations. This framework was built around a structure that enables
the Board and the management to discharge their risk management-related
responsibilities with appropriate delegation as well as checks and balances.
These responsibilities included defining risk appetite in accordance with
the Group’s business strategies and objectives, formulating risk policies that
govern the execution of those strategies, and establishing procedures and
limits for the approval, control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included three executive directors and an INED. The Risk
Management Committee had direct involvements in formulating the
Group’s risk appetite, and determined the levels of risk that the Group
is willing to undertake with reference to its financial capacity, strategic
direction, prevailing market conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The
Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group's risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.

The Board has reviewed and considers the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

Inside information
Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information, the Company:

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

ii. conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

iil. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of non-public or inside information;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL B B T e R RB EE 4 (4K)

(CONTINUED)

Inside information (continued) REEE (#)

iv.  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring, v. BE®IEBUR - ZII,EJJ"@ SV E RAEAM
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders, KR KEE DM RREEBHARHE
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also BHIES| o 2 FBUR RIES|I B AN A A
identify who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their RENES ARSBAHERRDRFZAEE
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and BBEBNER R

v.  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation v. CRFABHEBASBEBBEKONITIE
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided. SR ARRE T

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION BEETH =

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of LKGFMEBEBAMEEREN FEREAFK

the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The SEERRRRBIREM KRBT _=F "

remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group BT XKEMEBARAAERIRERS 25

in 2023 is summarised as follows: BABLat A T

HK$’000

FER

Auditing services EZRE 1,460
Non-auditing services (which included agreed FEB RS

upon procedures and other professional services) (BIEWERFREMBEZERD) 180

Total B 1,640

COMPANY SECRETARY DEIWME

The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the RAMEBERHRLEEN_TEZE+FHAA+/\H

Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time BZERARBZABWME TRXEEZZ

employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong BEE -RELERBEY qu Eﬂi@f;u ft & &HaD

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he WHERRBEFERNDEITTILRISENE 2

has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during the B E RS -

reporting year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HERERHRE

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

C&T stands as a leading software and services company at the forefront of
sustainable practices within the information technology landscape. C&T
believes that integrating sustainability factors into our business goals is
essential for long-term success and sustainable growth. Top management
upholds a proactive approach to risk management, recognising the
importance of regularly assessing risks across environmental, social, and
governance factors. We have implemented a robust ESG governance
mechanism that outlines the crucial supervisory role of the Board, the
guiding role of top management and the implementation role of ESG
Working Group in ESG performance and risk management. ESG-related risks
are managed by the business functions responsible for them, while the
Board holds the role of stewardship. Internal auditors are entrusted with
the responsibility of evaluating and ensuring the effectiveness of internal
controls in areas such as finance, operations, and compliance. By conducting
thorough and impartial assessments, the Company can prioritise essential
aspects pertaining to management, operations, and sustainability. For
further details, please refer to the session of ESG governance structure,
commitment and strategy.

Environmental Conservation
Governments and businesses around the world prioritise carbon neutrality.

At the 2023 United Nations Climate Change Conference, the first ‘global
stocktake’was concluded to ratchet up climate action before the end of the
decade, with the overarching aim of keeping global temperature increase to
1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels. C&T joins the Green Council
to support UN Sustainable Development Goal 13, combating climate
change. We take conscientious approach towards the environment entails
prioritising eco-friendly products at every stage of the selection process,
aiming to minimise the environmental impact.

Nurturing Talent
The success of a business is reliant on its skilled workforce. C&T is committed

to fostering employee talent through training programs and offering
opportunities for overseas training. With the company’s financial support,
our employees have participated in around 920 hours of training. At C&T,
we place a strong emphasis on team development as we acknowledge that
the skills acquired by our employees directly contribute to enhanced service
quality, increased client satisfaction, and greater innovation in our products.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Community Contribution
Recognised as a caring company since 2015, C&T upholds its role in

corporate social responsibility (“CSR"). The company donates to support
various charitable events, including those run by The Community Chest of
Hong Kong, Fu Hong Society and Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth. In addition to offering financial assistance, our Company actively
promotes volunteer work and charitable activities as a way to contribute to
the betterment of the communities in which we operate our business.

The Company has achieved consistent progress in business growth, staff
development, CSR initiatives, and environmental conservation. These
efforts are expected to generate new opportunities and enhance value for
our partners and stakeholders through our top-notch software products,
effective IT solutions, and high-quality services. With a focus on embracing
the positive impact of digitalisation in Hong Kong, we aim to build a
greener, more resilient, and smarter world. The Board remains committed to
our ESG goals, working towards creating a better world for our stakeholders
and future generations. We extend our heartfelt appreciation to our staff,
customers, suppliers, business partners, and other stakeholders for their
invaluable contributions to our sustainability journey.

REPORTING STANDARD AND PRINCIPLES

The Company (collectively mentioned as “the Company’, “C&T" or “we")
is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”)
Report ("ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 which
summarises the ESG policies, initiatives and performance of the Group as
well as its commitment in achieving environmental, social and governance
sustainability.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“the Guide”), Appendix C2 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and in compliance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and “‘comply or explain” provisions thereof.

To fulfill the requirement of the Guide, the Company has commissioned
an independent advisor to engage our stakeholders to perform materiality
assessment. The information disclosed in this report represents the
management performance of the most relevant and material issues of
our business, as identified by our key stakeholders. We endeavored to
incorporate materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency in the
presentation of the information, as required by the Stock Exchange.
Materiality Materiality was assessed based on the results obtained
from stakeholder engagement. The threshold for related
ESG topics was reviewed and confirmed by the Board
and the top management to ensure that they were
sufficiently important to our stakeholders.

Quantitative Where applicable, we compared year-to-year data
and discussed its implications. In the reporting of
emissions and energy consumption, relevant standards,
methodologies, assumptions, and conversion factors
are disclosed.

Balance This report provided an accurate, objective and
fair description of the Company’s sustainability
performance.

Consistency This report adopted consistent methodologies to allow
a fair comparison of our performance over time. Where
applicable, we disclosed the changes to the methods or
key performance indicators (KPIs) used.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

o R = S N

WHRBEEBMAIFMBR AR ([BEA])
EHETRAMSEQMAZRE HERER
HEES (B3 D BRATAE DB ERER
ERITNETHRBEEXNRE e RER
HE -

REBESINER  ARBEZABLERE
B ER D 2EEPIAETEENTMG -
AEERBENER  SRMANEERDEMH
MEBEMEFREEAAEZEZZENEEER
B REBEBIMNER  LMA2INEMRE - B
NAEENE - Bt FER-BERER -

B2t BEUHERBOEZ2ENMBHER
HE-EFEhEREEEEERL
HRAERERE HENRERBRERE
BB NEREBRNENS B
EE-

1t EERNBERT  HALREFHH
BA AT E - BB NEER
HIERET - BRATEERREREE -
TE - BREBBREY -

& ARERARANAFEERRS
ROERE BERAFAREL -

—HM ARERA-BENTTE QT
BRMABERKR ~EEROBERLT
BT RERRABN T A ERE

BRI -



ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI - B REREHE (A)

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARY (CONTINUED)

This report details our ESG governance structure, commitment and
strategy, management approach and performance during the period from
1 January to 31 December 2023 (the “reporting period”). The content
of the report covers our core business in solutions and integration services,
application software business in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
excludes investment sector. The report is published annually to maintain
ESG transparency. It is published on the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (http://www.ctil.com).

In the long run, we commit to enrich our ESG information disclosure in
order to enhance the transparency in our sustainability performance.

We sincerely welcome your feedback on our ESG report and our ESG
performance. Please contact us by any of the following means to share your
comments:

Address:
Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2503-8000
Fax: (852) 2503-8100
Email:  info@ctil.com

Website: http://www.ctil.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

A comprehensive stakeholder engagement exercise was conducted in
order to understand the perceptions and expectations of our stakeholders
with regard to our ESG management approach and performance. During
the process, we communicated with key internal stakeholders that we
identified to have a significant impact to our business. Stakeholders were
given the opportunity to share their views on ESG matters that are most
pertinent to them through the administration of surveys. We incorporated
their feedback into the process of identifying and prioritising the material
topics, which acts as the foundation of the formulation of long-term ESG
strategies as well as a strong reference to this report.

Process of stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment:
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Identify the relevant ESG
issues making reference
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Sustainability Accounting
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Develop the survey
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Conduct materiality
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on the responses of the
survey
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERARE ()

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

Material topics identified by our stakeholders are:

Subject area

Material topics

BFHEZ2REREEZMTME ()

BPNFNDEMERNERZER

Related session(s) in this report

FEHE

Employment and
labour practices

EBERBEIER

EERE

Talent development

ATEE

Employee engagement, rights and benefits
BT 28E - #HRER

Employee health and safety
BEREEZZ

Labour practices

BTER

REENEFAEE

Developing talent

AT ER

Fostering employee engagement
ReEEELHEE

Promoting employee health and well-being
RTHE 8 (@ R R ARAL

Being an employer of choice

AR EE

Operating practices
2IE B

Product and service quality
EmMREER

Customer privacy and data security
BEFPBILRBEZE
Resources consumption efficiency

COEVEEERLES

Continuous improvement in quality service
BERBITEICE

Protecting IP rights, data privacy and
cybersecurity

REMBERE BERLEBLEREGZE
Our efforts in improving environmental
performance

BABHEERERE

Corporate
governance

TRER

Anti-corruption, business ethics and compliance
to regulations
RE)T - EEBRTREBTFER

Upholding ethical conduct
RITERET

Contribution to
community

BRtE

Community service engagement

S8 & R

Our contribution to community
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gREARE ()

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

We also communicate with our stakeholders on an on-going basis through

different communication channels, the table below shows our main

channels with our key stakeholders.

Stakeholders

FOE

Key of communication

BEEE

BEHEZ2REREEMTME ()

BATEBTRBBREFERFNEER -
TRETEERFNENTIERE -

Communication channels
BERE

Employees C&T understands the needs of employees through Staff intranet portal, corporate news, promotion

EE different channels and handles their opinions and videos, posters, training, performance appraisal,
recommendations. meetings and emails
MEERTRRETREENTERERERLE BINHE 0ENE SEXH 8K 5
B KEFHE - ERER

Suppliers C&T continuously reviews performance of suppliers/ Product/service terms and conditions, code of

HER service providers and ensures quality of products/ conduct, contracts, after-sales service (customer
services. inquiries or complaints), meetings and emails
MEREERMER REEEENRARE ER/ RBERRENS B8 66 &
RER/TRBEE - ‘IR® (FFERHIRF) EERER

Clients C&T collects customer feedback through various Negotiation of contracts, satisfaction survey, customer

B platforms to ensure customer opinions are handled in  service hotline, meetings and emails
a timely manner. BEEak mEEALT BPREAE @
MEE R T RATAREEPREUMBREFE KER
BEPER-

Investors C&T ensures timely disclosure and compliance of Notices, announcements, circulars, annual and interim

KEE listing rules and other related rules and regulations. reports, annual general meeting and face-to-face
B RER R SR EE R T LM REMBERE  meetings/calls with investors
O FOERR o BE QM BR FERTHRES  RERBF

REREREEFRSSHERBE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY

Governance Structure
The Board, which has overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy

and performance progress, is committed to ensuring that our business
operates responsibly and acts in the best interests of our stakeholders and
shareholders. Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, chairs the ESG Working Group, which is delegated
the day-to-day management of ESG aspects by the Board. The ESG Working
Group oversees our ESG performance, leads long-term ESG strategic
development, and reports to the Board. Our ESG performance is reviewed
and evaluated annually, which will be disclosed in our annual ESG report.

To ensure appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place, the Board also delegates its responsibility
to evaluate and determine key risks (including ESG related risks) to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee. After completing
the review, the committees provide the Board with their findings and
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval.

To enhance the sustainability capability of the Board and our ESG Working
Group, training was arranged to ensure the Board and ESG Working Group
were aware of the latest corporate governance regulations and updates on
ESG.

Further information about our risk management, internal controls and
corporate governance can be found in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Commitment and Strategy
As a corporate citizen, we consider ESG compliance as a fundamental

operation while striving to create value for our people, environment, and
community. The Board will conduct periodical review of strategies and
areas for improvement. Nurturing Talent, Environmental Conservation,
Community Contribution and Supply Chain Management are the four pillars
guiding our business excellence.

ERRE  AER

EETXAEEARAIMNRE HEREARS
BERBER BOBRAAREBUNEBER
A EBIE WD ERBRRNRER ST
FoAREEBUIIFNTESHREMEZ L EER
B odekERIENMIERE Z/NHEES
SEEEERE HEMERFTAMNAEEE -
RIE g RERIENEEBRMOIRE -
HEREARRE FERHMNIRR e k®E
ARBER VRESTZER BMSFERF

FEHHIRIR g REARE - WKNRFERE -
e RERRERHE -

ERRETEERAROERE HERERRE
BMEELANERRGE  EFENEETHR
BErErZRRE (BERE e RERBERR)
MEARTERZESREREREZES -
HEKE ZEEGRNESSREELASTERNR
B UWHESeEERIE -

RRAEZGRIRE HERERAIENED
AFEEREN  RMLEEI  BRESE

&f& R g RERIENMANBRINDE

BERHROIRIRE e REANERTER -

ERARMOARERE RAMEZEREERERN
E—FER  GERAFHRNEEEARE]

AER R

ERTEAR BMBRE e kEREMR
BAEEAEZE RARBHNAEAET BEEAR
HEEE EER TR RBLREFRE
ZHHEAEAS CERERE - BRALE KM
JEHEEIR B BRMERKEMEBHMALZE -

M EREEEGRA —E-=FFR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gREARE ()

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT RIE - HEREREE  RERXK
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED) g (%)
Commitment and Strategy (continued) AERER (&)
The Group realises the emerging importance of sustainability worldwide. REEEHINEHRARBELERNEEZENE A
Aligning with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) HREBE TT% RESME RHEE({E AN
that address the global challenges with respect to poverty, inequality, FHRIFEZZIKENBERAIFELZREE -
climate change, environmental degradation, peace and justice, we based BMBER MR TR EONETFEERE
our focus on four SDGs listed in the following table. The ESG Working Group T ORI e RERTIEMAIFEREIIRE
will keep monitoring the ESG targets and report to the Board regularly while HEREREE YETHRAEESER M=
the Board will provide opinions on the target progress. During the reporting YR EKEREERHER - R EHIME -
period, the ESG Working Group put out a C&T Sustainability Guidebook RIE e RERIENEBDERIB T HESE
that details the Group’s sustainability efforts, which was communicated to RIEF  FANBARENAFERERIIE -
employees for better management and implementation of sustainability WEERET  NERFHEREREREAFE
initiatives. TR o
Nurturing Talent
EEAT
SDG 8 DecentWork  Targets BE
and Economic Growth —  To maintain our employer-employee relationship - BRETIESERRARERANEET
AHERREEES: with our staff in strict compliance with or beyond R TEFEERER:
EEIENSELER the employment rules and regulations;
DECENT WORK AND - Todevelop and retain talents prospering - BERBEATUEDRREER: X
PGS company growth; and
/‘/| - Tostrive for adecent and safety work - BERNRZEHIERE-
‘I environment.
Approach Fi%
- Toprovide regular training, development - RETHEI - BRIAIREIEDTES
programmes and training sponsorship to our
staff;

e}

I EBER 2 REEER &

- To implement occupational safety and health -

\

measures; and
- Toorganise team building and staff activities. - BRERERRELEH-
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED)

Environmental Conservation

RERE

ERRE  AER

SDG 13 Climate Targets

Action - To raise awareness about environmental
ARERREE13: sustainability among our staff;

RRTH - Topromote the 5Rs (Refuse-Reduce-Reuse-

Repurpose-Recycle) concept in office; and

- To combat climate change in terms of energy
conservation and emission reduction.

Approach

- To enhance existing recycling programmes and
facilities in office;

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

- To provide non-disposable utensils to staff;

- To organise seminars and workshops regarding
environmental sustainability;

= To increase greenery covers in office, to
encourage staff to adopt a plant-based diet
at least one day per week to combat climate
change, and to encourage and bring awareness
about a vegetarian diet;

- To maintain a comfortable temperature range of
24-26°C in office;

- To refine business procedures and our products
to achieve paperless office; and

- To support or collaborate with organisations
which promote environmental protection.

Community Contribution

REETIHRAANFERROEM

RPBAEHRERER-BL-—EA-EHT
E-ERO#S R

RETHIRE IR BOR e T PR RAR &1L -
MR AEHHEF R WG E K&
RUINERATFET:

BRBBRFKERROFTERITIEY

EMBAENEL  ZBETIEERL X
CEARHREZICARRERERER

PR AR EERUE6ENTELRE
HEEBRFREMNEREARL R

XFHPRARNBEERELSE -

BERHEE

SDG 17 Partnerships  Targets

for the Goals - To be a community care company; and
AEHEREBEE17: - Toraise awareness among the staff about caring
REBEEROMKHE for the community and the underprivileged.
% Approach

17 PARTNERSHIPS -

FOR THE GOALS ) -

- To make donation to charities; and

@ - To provide internship programmes for university
graduates.

To participate in community volunteering events;

HEHER K
REETHEELENSEHENER -

SEMBRETEE
Bk ?5%%%% PR
RHEBBAETARERE -

o
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‘ﬂﬂih} K
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, COMMITMENT
AND STRATEGY (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

SDG 12 Responsible Targets

Consumptionand - To source from sustainable supplier; and

Production - To raise awareness among the staff about
AEHEZREE sustainable use of resources.

12: BEEHEERM Approach

EE = To establish sustainable procurement guidelines

for our staff; and
To regularly review and adopt up-to-date
supplier code of conducts.

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION =

O

- WAUREHERRE: R
- REEIHARUHENMORA-

-  RETHEAFERERES R

- TEHEEREARMANEERTAEL -

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

OURTALENT

Being an Employer of Choice
Investing in our ability to attract, train, retain, and motivate talented

professionals is a crucial strategy for our success and growth. By providing
competitive remuneration packages for our employees, we hope to attract
high potential candidates in the market and motivate our employees.
The remuneration package of employees is also regularly reviewed and
necessary adjustments are made to conform to the market standard.

We are keen to provide remuneration packages beyond the requirements
of the Employment Ordinance; hence, full-paid sick leave, maternity leave,
and paternity leave are provided to local staff. Upholding our work-life
balance culture and continuous learning advocation, C&T offers special
paid leave such as birthday leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, and
graduation and examination time off. Medical insurance and education
subsidy are also available to our staff.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Being an Employer of Choice (continued)
Our Employee Handbooks set forth conduct and attitude expectations

for employees, and provide detailed information about employment
terms, benefits, and development policies. These documents are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in labour regulations. Feedback
from employees on our policies and their job duties and work environment
is welcome.

We have a formal grievance procedure in place that aims to settle employee
grievances within the shortest possible time, with the objective of rendering
fairness and justice to all parties concerned. Employee may present
their grievance either verbally or in writing to the Company’s Human
Resources Department, who is responsible for assisting the employee to
solve the grievance. All grievances are treated confidentially.

We strictly abide by the labour regulations of where we operate and
prohibit the employment of child and forced labour and we are also
committed to promoting a transparent and fair recruitment process.

During our recruitment and staff promotion process, we provide equal
opportunity for all people regardless of sex, marital status, family status or
disability. Our judgment is based on their qualifications, experience, skills,
potential and performance. Performance appraisal is offered to employees
on an annual basis. The purpose of our performance appraisal is not solely
to evaluate employees’ abilities, it also provides the opportunities for
them to discuss their concerns and ideas with management.

We acknowledge our responsibilities to actively promote a diversified
working environment that is free from discrimination. It is believed that the
potential of our employees will be fully enabled when they are given equal
opportunities in terms of career development and promotion.

In 2023, we complied with all relevant laws and regulations, including
the Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance, Inland Revenue
Ordinance, and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong
Kong, as well as the Labour Law and Employment Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China.

BMHAF (8)
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RiR  HgRERHRE(E

OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Diversity and Inclusiveness
Employee profiles in 2022 and 2023 of our operations in Hong Kong and

Mainland China, breakdown by gender, age group, employment type,
employee category and geographical location are as below.

Year ended 31 December

Our workforce BB AE

By gender 12 1 Bl &l 5
Female g

Male S

By age group RERARE D
Below 30 30BRA T

30-39 30-3975%

40-49 40-49 5%,

50 or above 50 BA |

By employment type REEERES
Full-time iy

Part-time e

By employee category REEERE S
Top =%

Middle R

General — MR B AR

By geographical location Zith B &5

Hong Kong G
Mainland China H Y b

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BAWAZ ()

ZtEERM

TR CFRIT=FHERPBEAER
BEBRISWOT - IZER - FEHRAR - EE
A EEBRRIRMEE S -

HE+T-_A=+T—HLEE

2023 2022
355 373
126 128
229 245

84 112
121 122
105 93

45 46
343 361

12 12

9 8

17 15
329 350
193 222
162 151
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RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

OURTALENT (CONTINUED)
Employee turnover rates in 2022 and 2023 of our operations in Hong Kong

and Mainland China, breakdown by gender, age group and geographical
location are as below.

Year ended 31 December

EMEOAF (8)
TECFR-F=FHEAERPERNMERS
BERKRFNEMT  ZHER - FicE R Rit

&S -

BHE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
20% 27%
13% 22%
23% 29%

|

Overall turnover rate' S NN
By gender &1 Bl &l 2
Female pegis

Male B

By age group REwRARE D
Below 30 305 AT

30-39 30-395%

40-49 40-49 3%,

50 or above 50783k A

By geographical location % th &= 8| 2

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China HE i

1 The turnover rate = the total number of leaver who either leave voluntarily, retire,
or is dismissed in the specified category/the total number of employees of the

corresponding category as at the year-end date.

38% 51%
17% 16%

8% 16%
20% 17%
27% 36%
10% 13%

1 MR = TR E R B FEBERL - RKLEFR AV BE
BBAE/ NEFEBIERENEEEAR -

M EGEEERAR T =FFH



64

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Developing Talent
We are committed to developing a capable team. As a company providing

IT solutions, the skills and knowledge of our employees are closely linked
to the quality of what we deliver, client satisfaction and sustainability of our
business. Under our training programme, employees are regularly provided
with opportunities to attend formal training programmes that benefit their
career developments, including overseas training opportunities.

To incentivise our employees to take role-related training and qualification
assessments organised by external parties, we offer financial sponsorship as
stated in our “Education Subsidy Policy”.

(1) Structured orientation training is provided to new joiners which
covers an introduction to our values, business operations, employee
rights and ESG related area;

(2)  Appropriate in-house and external trainings are organised to ensure
satisfactory job performance of our employees; and

(3)  Provide education subsidy to encourage employees to take external
courses or professional examinations for career development.

During the reporting year, we continued to cooperate with a professional
training institute to organise internal training workshops to nominated
staff on interpersonal skills such as communication and influencing skills,
objective and KPI settings. We also continue support our staff to take job
related examinations. We have provided over HK$163,000 of financial
sponsorship during the reporting year. The Group will periodically
organise briefings to all directors aimed at enhancing and updating their
understanding and proficiency with respect to their duties and obligations,
such as those pertaining to ESG and corporate governance.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Developing Talent (continued)
Total training hours completed during the year by our employees are

summarised as below.

—E_=H+-A=+—H

31 December 2023

Percentage Average

of employees training hours

trained’ per employee?

EZEIN BEEEN

Staff Training B T3 EEFS S 35 12 3| /) B 2

By gender 4 k)

Female g 40% 3.89

Male St 34% 1.90
By employee category RESEEAE S

Top =% 100% 561

Middle AR 59% 482

General — R EBAR 33% 241

31 December 2022 —E--F+=ZH=+—H

Percentage Average

of employees training hours

trained' per employee?

EZEIHN SEEEN

Staff Training B T EEEDL 15 $5Z 3 /) By 2

By gender &1 B8l 5

Female g 39% 3.18

Male B 37% 185
By employee category RESERE S

Top SN 100% 2.25

Middle 2K 47% 213

General — AR B AR 36% 231

1 The percentage of employees trained = the total number of employees trained by 1 EXEINEEB Y L=ERERINZIE

BRAE/ NFHEAERENNESBAL -

specified category/the total number of employees of the corresponding category
as at the year end date.

2 The average training hours per employee = the total training hours by specified 2 G EBOTHX =105 E 858 Z )l K
g@n/ NFEBEREERNEEEAY

category/the total number of employees of the corresponding category as at the
year end date.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Developing Talent (continued)
C&T aspires to achieve a sustainable growth that could bring enlightenment

and a positive impact to young people. To cultivate potential talents in the
IT industry, we conduct mentorship programs and give advice on career
planning to future generations.

Fostering Employee Engagement
C&T is committed to adopting employee-oriented initiatives to maintain

and boost employee morale. We encourage two-way communication
and embrace feedback through regular review meetings and employee
surveys. Certain family-friendly employment practices include flexible work
arrangements, organising recreational activities for employees and their
family members, and setting up breastfeeding support facilities for working
mothers.

The Company actively promotes a work environment that fosters inclusivity
among employees through inter-departmental gatherings and team-
building activities and a comprehensive Staff Engagement Programme.
A variety of staff benefits are provided, such as transportation subsidies,
corporate discounts, local expo and funfair tickets, etc. Additionally, to
express gratitude for their dedication over the years, long service awards
are presented to employees who have been with the company for 5, 10, 15,
and 20 years.

Engaging employees can contribute to higher productivity and more
profitability. It is in our best interest to keep employees engaged through
efficient communication. Continuing from the practise started in 2020,
the “Regular Customer Highlights” functions as a means to introduce
our new customer acquisitions from different business units. In addition,
internal communication was improved by supplying regular updates of
our success stories, corporate news and promotion videos to employees.
Through different internal channels, we established better communication
to provide first-hand market news to our staff.
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Promoting Employee Health and Well-being
A healthy and harmonious working environment is essential to attract, retain

and motivate talents. C&T values the health and well-being of employees
and considers that as one of its foremost priorities. An all-encompassing
"Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Policy” in accordance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance Chapter 509 was created and
conveyed to all employees. To effectively deliver health information to
employees, we circulated advice on nutritious diets, stretching exercises,
and mental health management on the staff intranet.

In 2023, we focused on the following areas when executing the OSH
initiatives:

1. Enhance staff understanding of safety and health hazards at work;

2. Encourage proper ergonomic setup of employee workstations;
3. Boost staff mental well-being to improve productivity; and

4. Enhance annual leave package to enable employees to have flexible
time-off options, and to boost work-life satisfaction.

A dedicated team is appointed to organise and bring together efforts to
guarantee the proper execution of the OSH programs and to perform
regular safety inspections. Fire safety education is provided to employees,
demonstrating the emergency routes and other vital safeguards in a fire
outbreak.

A wholesome work environment not only sustains the physical wellness of
staff members but also furnishes a pleasant setting for improved teamwork
and efficiency. Hence, staff-caring activities are fundamental to motivating

workers at C&T.

In 2023, we organised a series of employee engagement workshops that
attracted over 60 staff members to join:

Ukulele Art Jam Workshop
Horticultural Therapy Workshop

Christmas Tree Glass-Bottle Preserved Flowers Lamp Decoration
Workshop
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OUR TALENT (CONTINUED)

Promoting Employee Health and Well-being (continued)
Apart from conducting stress-relieving workshops, we organised festival

celebrations to generate more positivity in the office. These activities allow
employees to enjoy moments of fun amidst their busy work schedules. To
encourage healthy eating behaviors, “Wellness Fruit Corners” are arranged,
where a variety of thoughtfully selected fruits are regularly distributed to
our employees.

Our health and safety performance was deemed satisfactory during the
reporting year, with zero employee fatalities recorded during the current
and the past three years from 2021 to 2023. No work-related injuries were
reported during the reporting year. Moving forward, we remain committed
to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment for all our
employees.

In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, C&T continues to maintain a high
standard of health and safety precautions to minimise the potential risks to
our staff.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

Continuous Improvement in Quality Service
To ensure customer satisfaction, we are committed to continuously

improving our products, services, and implementation processes. During
the reporting period, we set specific objectives for our Project Management
Office (PMO), which greatly enhanced our project management workflows
in terms of standardisation and efficiency. By standardising processes and
materials for large-scale project implementations, we anticipate repeated
success. Our ongoing project governance through PMO and Jira enables
better monitoring and management of project delivery, leading to
significant business optimisation. To drive project efficiency, we prioritise
the following factors:

Well-informed project teams — understanding mission, goals, scope
and milestones;

Clearly defined roles leading to accountability, ownership and quality;

Increased customer buy-in;

Conflict resolution and early roadblocking;
Steering committee meetings;

Reviews of key risks and issues; and
Alignment with business strategies.

Our customer service hotline efficiently handles client inquiries and
complaints throughout business hours. In the event of a complaint, we
promptly investigate, respond, and develop improvement plans based
on the findings. During the reporting period, we conducted customer
satisfaction surveys to identify areas for improvement and gather insights
for our future products and services.

To address critical issues or regulatory changes, hot-fix patches will be
released for our application software products to ensure smooth product
installations. Moreover, online updates will be accessible through different
app stores for Software as a Service (“SaaS") or mobile applications.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Protecting IP Rights, Data Privacy and Cybersecurity
Our employees are committed and compelled to maintain a high standard

of integrity and ethics, as set out in the Group'’s Code of Business Conduct
Policy. This policy establishes basic principles to guide our behaviours and
practices when conducting business, ensuring compliance with local laws
and regulations.

The Group has a strong compliance culture and are committed to adhering
to data privacy laws and regulations to safeguard customers’ data and
sensitive information. Guidelines on data collection, usage and retention
are clearly set out in the policies and standard procedures in our Privacy
Statement and Personal Information Collection Statement.

The Employee Handbook outlines the Group’s policies on intellectual
property, including compliance with relevant copyright laws, the use
of computer software for business purposes, and security precautions
for accessing the Company network. Employees are expected to act in
accordance with these information security measures as set out in the
handbook.

The policy requires our employees to respect and protect intellectual
property rights in our day-to-day operations. This includes the careful
handling and usage of trade secrets, patents, trademarks and copyrights,
as well as business, marketing and service plans, engineering ideas, design
and databases. Data is protected by a number of physical, electronic and
procedural safeguards that are in line with the regulatory requirements.

We acknowledge our responsibility in safeguarding the data privacy of our
customers. The Group is committed to ensuring that customer information
is handled safely and securely by implementing dedicated customer
data protection measures. Access to C&T's network is restricted to
registered devices, with password authentication required for logging into
the Company’s systems. To safeguard data confidentiality, preventive
measures such as regular security assessments and network maintenance
are conducted routinely.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

@)

Supply Chain Management

As an IT services provider, C&T mainly procure services from qualified
suppliers and subcontractors. Our policy requires outsourced activities to
comply with the same security requirements as in-house activities. If there
are needs to engage new suppliers or subcontractors, sufficient background
and quality assessment will be conducted to ensure quality of work
delivered to customers. In the reporting period, 26 suppliers underwent
performance evaluations. These evaluations are conducted regularly by the
project team to ensure that the quality of the goods and services provided
by the suppliers or subcontractors remains at an acceptable level, and that
there are no significant environmental or social risks identified.

The Group has formulated the procurement policy and procedures to
standardise the process of supplier selection, and also minimise potential
risks throughout the supply chain.

At C&T, we primarily depend on local suppliers and service providers to
reduce the carbon emissions resulting from transportation. Furthermore,
during the selection process, we prioritise suppliers who offer eco-friendly
products and services to minimise the impact on the environment.

Supplier integrity is of great importance to us. Therefore, we only
collaborate with suppliers and partners who have good track records
and haven't violated any relevant regulations or business ethics. We
have a zero-tolerance policy towards bribery and corruption, and strictly
prohibit suppliers from obtaining procurement contracts or cooperative
relationships through any form of pay-to-play or gifts.

Despite the significant disruptions caused by the geopolitical events to the
global supply chain, being an IT services provider with self-developed core
software and services, the impact to our daily operations was considered
not material during the reporting period.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management (continued)
Number of vendors by geographical region

During the reporting year, the number of major vendors* by geographical
region is as follows:

Geographical region
Hong Kong BE

RER
HiBEKR, &

Mainland China
Other countries/regions

* Vendors with more than HK$10,000 purchases during the reporting period.

Upholding Ethical Conduct

Our “Code of Business Conduct Policy” sets out our operating principles
to mitigate the risk of bribery and corruption. We have a zero-tolerance
policy towards any corrupt practices. The policy provides guidance on the
appropriate practice when dealing with our suppliers, contractors, business
partners and other external parties. Our expectations on the conduct
of employees have been well stated in the Employee Handbooks. Anti-
corruption training sessions have been provided to directors and our staff
and attendance is mandatory. During the year, anti-corruption training was
arranged with Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to our
staff. All directors also attained anti-corruption training from the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Under the Group's Whistleblowing Policy, we offer anonymous
whistleblowing channels for our employees and stakeholders to report any
suspected case of misconduct. All reports will be brought to our internal
auditor for investigation, which is overseen by C&T's Audit Committee.

Our anti-corruption related policies are crafted according to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Our compliance with
these pertinent laws and regulations has resulted in no confirmed incidents
of corruption in our operations during 2023.

In terms of data breaches and cyberattacks, the Group takes measures
for external and internal network access layers, server security, daily
management and monitoring. In addition, we frequently disseminated
information security advice to all personnel via internal email. This included
guidance on protecting mobile devices, thwarting phishing scams, and
securely conducting online meetings.
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

Upholding Ethical Conduct (continued)

We design information security efforts to protect our intellectual property
and ensure the safe collection and usage of personal data. We register
our trademarks and domain names in relevant jurisdictions to protect the
intellectual property of the Group and make our expectations clear to our
employees in the Employee Handbook and employee contract, which
requires all employees to treat customer data in strict confidence.

To illustrate, our security measures include:

Firewalls at both external and internal network access points, with
four layers of access control for intranet access server traffic and
distinct security isolation zones to prevent exposure of high-risk ports
and control traffic behavior between zones.

|dentification of attack characteristics of complete protocol data in
traffic, enabling detection and blocking of malicious activity, thus
protecting our business systems.

Implementation of anti-virus and server security systems on servers to
intercept viruses and intranet attacks.

Regular auxiliary management and monitoring of database access
traffic, security system’s security log files, equipment operations of
production business systems, mail security gateways, etc,, to conduct
audits and analyses for prompt identification and elimination of
corresponding security risks.

Encryption of data transmission in our business systems to ensure
network transmission processes are secure.

During year 2023, we have coordinated with the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data for a seminar, to ensure C&T managers and personal data
processors understand the principles and guidelines on Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance.

In 2023, we complied with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact to us, including Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and no
incident of information leakage reported during the reporting year.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Our Relationship with the Environment
At C&T, we believe in establishing a foundation of corporate citizenship

that emphasises balance between business, community, and environment.
As we conduct our operations, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment while promoting environmental sustainability through our
solutions. The Environmental Policy that documents our actions to conserve
the environment is communicated with employees and along the value
chain. In addition to complying with the relevant legislation and regulatory
requirements, the policy offers guidance for our management and staff to
follow in daily operations. This policy is available to all personnel in C&T and
is reviewed regularly.

Our operation does not involve air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, water consumption, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in significant quantities. Also, the use
of packaging material to the finished products is not related to our business.

In 2023, we complied with all applicable environmental regulations
including Air Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance.

Climate Change
Due to global climate change, our business is inevitably being affected on

different occasions. The management is aware of the direct and indirect
impact of this risk and acknowledges the necessity to take appropriate
measures in building our climate resilience and adaptive capacity.

We have identified climate change-related risks which have impacted or
may affect to our business as below:
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BEMHRE (&)
Climate Change (continued) RIE# L (&)
Physical Risks BB E
(1) Urban Heat Island Effect Causing more Hot Days and Nights (1) BHRENEGHNLRNEREZ
—  Higher probability of heat stress related illness and lower — BEEEBEEROEEIgI - T
working efficiency and productivity; and MEREENRE : &
~  Increasing energy costs for air-conditioning in office and server — WAERMABRENTALREAR
room, worsening air pollution levels. TEIG I - FEERIFRKEREL -
Actions taken or considered E R E BRI ITE
- Maintaining comfortable temperature in range of 24-26°C in — BRAENEARERT2UECERRK
office (except server room); E (ARSI ERIN
~  Replacing and cleaning air filters in air-conditioning - TEHEBRRERERANZERBAE -
periodically to enhance energy efficiency; AR S B IR K
—  Enhancing staff awareness of heat stress related illness; — RSB I¥EAE Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ“ ;
- Reorganising work schedule; and — ENTHI(ERR:
—  Using level 1 energy label equipment in office. - ‘ERAEFEAEE ﬁ& RIZEH R
1 o
(2)  Anincrease in the Occurrence of Extreme Weather Events (e.g. super Q) 1K EM (WERBERERER)
typhoons, along with hot days and nights) M R EE %
~  Resulting operation delay, lowering productivity; — EIRERE RETEEN:
- Reducing revenues; - AR
- Increasing operational cost; — BRI
- Damaging facilities (for example: server disruption due to - ﬁ)ﬁ EHME (I - BREE - BERIE
power failure, window damage, flooding). IR TEK R AR ES R ET) ©

- Amanging work-from-home or flexible working hours for staff - ﬁ?ﬁFE\IE%If’ETﬁ%E’JIVEH—?
to minimise the effect of disturbance in operations; M UBRERIEEBOTELE

- Equipping with a backup power supply to maintain the — REEABER UEETERHS
operation of servers when it encounters a disruption; and RIRESHETT &

~  Monitoring window safety regularly. - THEAEFPZZE-

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gREARE ()

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BMANERR (&)

Climate Change (continued) Rir# 1 (&)

Physical Risks (continued) EREE (E)

(3)  More Natural Disasters (e.g. flooding, storm surge etc,) B) BZEREEF KK - EEHE)
- Suspending operations; - =&
- Damaging facilities; and - HEEER
—  Collapse of the buildings. — BEYES -

Actions taken or considered

—  Establishing a business continuity plan; — BUEBEEMEE:
- Following government's and international’s guidelines of — EFYBEIBNREEASHEHERR
climate change in the industry closely; and RERIEETE &
—  Joining in industry forums or seminars to understand industry — ERZ2EEAREBRMAIEG - TH
norms and new technologies actively. TTEEHR & ARl
Transition Risks BER R
(1) Policy and Regulatory (e.q. local carbon emission targets) (1) HEREE (20765 B 1E)
Impact 4
—  Posting difficulties in operations; and - FEXEESENRNE: X
—  Increasing operational cost to fulfil stringent carbon emission — R E RSN E R R B
requirements either by hardware replacement or by BOBR BERR S - B 8 & A AN T
technology applications. B o
Actions taken or considered BRI E R RN TE
—  Setting up carbon emissions targets and reduction plans; —  HIEBRBER B B ROB R
- Conducting comprehensive carbon audits and setting up —  ETEREMRER R RBEE
carbon emission profiles; S
—  Replacing low energy-efficient devices; and — BRESEMMRE: R
—  Procuring energy efficient or environmental friendly products — RBEEIIRERNEDRIRG
or services.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Climate Change (continued)
Transition Risks (continued)

(2)  Market and Reputation (e.g. stakeholders’expectation on the
Group’s climate change commitments)

BRHNERE (&)

RIR#{t (&)

BERK(E)

Q) THEREE(WGE L EETIRE L
HERTHIE)

Impact =

- Becoming less qualified on tendering;
= Becoming less competitive among peers; and
- Losing reputations and clients’trust.

Actions taken or considered

= Participating in charters, programmes or recognitions or/and
even awards to demonstrate commitments; and

- Communicating with stakeholders to understand their needs
and expectations constantly.

—  EREARS
- HERTTOBRFNTE R
— REWBAEPEAE-
BRI E BRI T8

- 2HETEIEARERREE
R - UERAGE R
- FHEEFNHERR THREENF

C&T consistently implements various measures that encourage employees
to conserve resources and reduce wastage to promote green operations.

Providing Environmental Solutions for Customers
Our solution offerings follow closely the Environmental Policy of the

Company. From design to implementation, we are dedicated to realising
our corporate’s vision “To build a better world with Information Technology”
and inspiring our clients to adopt IT to protecting our environment.

Pursuing carbon neutrality is a concern across all industries, as customers
increasingly seek technological solutions to support their sustainability
goals. Addressing the environmental impact of consumption, the
traditional procurement and tendering process heavily relies on paper
usage. During the reporting period, several key public organisations and
commercial enterprise in essential industries in Hong Kong adopted our
ProSmart, enabling a significant shift from paper-intensive processes to
environmentally friendly alternatives. This transition resulted in savings of
millions of pages per year. Ensuring the relevance of our products entails
providing customers with reliable and efficient systems that align with their
conservation objectives.

ME—EEmSEEG BB THHNERM
WMARE - NREREEE -

REFPRUERRBRE R
RMRENRRS REBADANRREE -
HRABIET - RABBNERLEIEMEA
Bt HERXHHURIOES 3I8RFAME
ABHRRERIE -

BERPBRMSKEINEATRAGHEE
RAFELREE  BRMPNKASITEE
FIMREE - BEHEBHRENTE 8
MRERBEAEERERBEKROER - BNR
EHRN AREBEETENTEARKER
D ERAProSmart BEIRMEA KT LA R
FRRRAREFNEAEE - EHEEFFTF A
EEHABERE - BEREMERVMRELE -
BV EARPRAFEAEMHNEENTER

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our Efforts in Improving Environmental Performance
In the realm of C&T's future endeavors, achieving environmental

sustainability stands as a pivotal objective. Apart from establishing
environmental guidelines and facilities, we emphasise initiating a green
mindset among our employees. We pursue greater environmental
consciousness in the workplace through diverse sustainability programmes.
Up-to-date green trends and topics are introduced via staff intranet and
posters on notice boards. Employees are also encouraged to participate in
different local and international environmental advocacies.

In our proactive pursuit to drive top-down change and instill a culture of
sustainability within our organisation, we co-organised a Sustainability
Talk with WWF Hong Kong for our senior management and team leaders.
During this event, industry professionals shared valuable insights on
the potential risks and opportunities associated with sustainability. The
significance of achieving net zero, nature-based solutions, and addressing
the climate crisis within the business context was underscored. This
collaborative effort serves to inspire and empower our leadership teams
to embrace and integrate sustainability principles into our organisational
ethos. Additionally, as part of our commitment to environmental education,
we organised a Coral Community Eco-Tour & Research Activity. Guided
by WWF Hong Kong, employees engaged in coral watching activity in a
glass-bottomed boat in Hoi Ha Wan, gaining an immersive experience to
enhance their understanding of the marine ecosystems and the importance
of conservation efforts.

C&T is dedicated to upholding its business operations with top-tier green
practices, aiming at mitigating environmental impacts and enhancing
overall quality of life. With a continued commitment to environmental
conservation, C&T remains unwavering in its dedication to creating a
sustainable future. During the reporting period, we have established an
energy consumption target to reduce absolute consumption by 25% by
2030, with 2023 as the base year, following a full recovery of operation after
the pandemic. We shall closely monitor our progress towards achieving the
target.
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RARIRERRERR

BERIRSM A AR BB A RS N e
2o BRBIYBSESI KRR - RIVERAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our Efforts in Improving Environmental Performance

(continued)
In line with this goal, the Group has implemented a range of energy-

saving measures to oversee energy consumption, including conducting
an energy audit to identify areas for improvement, installing timers to
minimise unnecessary energy usage, and deploying energy-efficient
lighting systems. Additionally, the Company has embraced bulk purchasing
to minimise packaging, initiated a digital transformation programme
to foster a paperless office, and strategically placed recycling collection
points throughout the office. Apart from the usual recyclables, we actively
promote the recycling of coffee grounds to minimise organic waste, and
festive recyclables like desk calendars, mooncake tins, and red packets.

Furthermore, efforts to reduce water consumption have been undertaken,
including the installation of water-saving devices and the implementation
of regular inspections of water pipes to prevent wastage. These proactive
measures underscore the Group’s commitment to sustainability and
environmental stewardship, ultimately contributing to a greener and more
efficient workplace.

By monitoring various environmental metrics, we can continuously
enhance the environmental performance of our operation. Our tracking
includes electricity consumption, paper usage, and carbon emissions. The
information presented in the subsequent sections is valuable for assessing
our environmental performance and devising improvement measures.

Year ended 31 December

BEMHRE (&)
BEMBOIRERARKRE (B)

RERE-BE AKRBECHE—RIISER
IEEREERORRE - BIRETTRRIRE UERIF
ERENMT TERERBUKERITHVE
MEERER » AR EBE SR IRA R 4L - b oh
ARAERAATRBURERLEE  FR
BUENABNREERMCMAE  WHEEME
MAERBEUEHRECIKWKES -RTERE
AT B4 am S - T AP AR A8k HE T 3 MK 000 BV LA
RERLAREY  URSBEARK S - 0
BEEARE A2 RMZEH -

BE BATRBRERBRSAKE  BELE
BIKKENTERBREKEUHIERE - %FH
BEEMBAESEHAIKEZRIREETER
A RRAMNITEERR EAMENT
YRI5 P ©

BREANZBREEE  RATUTERESZ
EBRBEN -BRERBREENER  MRE
PRI - ERER M EE P 2IIMEREHR
AERMNRERBALGEREREIFTER
EEE-

BHE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

BEERAE
BENERE(TER)
(FREFFHKEE)
BRpEnR (12580 [E 2)°
(RS (L E &

Office in Hong Kong

Electricity consumption (kWh)'

Electricity consumption intensity
(kWh/m? floor area)

Carbon emission (Scope 2 only)?
(tonnes CO,-e)

Carbon intensity

FIKEE)

(tonnes CO,-e/m?floor area)

WEEREE (RSt EE

290,224 278,871 +4.07%

156 150 +4.00%

197 190 +3.68%

0.11 0.10 +10.00%
MBRGREERAR T —FFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - HERER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our Efforts in Improving Environmental Performance
(continued)

Year ended 31 December

BMHRE (&)
BEMBOIRERARKRE (B)

BE+-_A=+—HILFE

TEABBRAE?
ERFE(TEE)!
(FTRE,/F7KEE)
BRBERR ((Z 5 %0E 2)
(RSt EE

R EE (A St
¥ oKEE)

Offices in Mainland China?
Electricity consumption (kWh)'
Electricity consumption intensity
(kwh/m? floor area)
Carbon emission (Scope 2 only)*
(tonnes CO;-e)
Carbon intensity*
(tonnes CO-e/m? floor area)

1 Electricity consumption report included electricity consumed by office central air-
conditioning, lighting and other electronic devices.

2 We are accounting for Scope 2 carbon emission (indirect emission from
consumption of purchased electricity) only. Our operation involves insignificant
direct emission from stationary and mobile consumption. According to the latest
Sustainability Reports published by HK Electric Investments, the carbon footprint
per kWh of electricity sold in 2022 was 0.68kg.

3 Included offices in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjing.

4 For carbon emissions accounting of the China operation, we used the electricity
emission factor published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China, 2023 was 0.5703 tCO2/MWh and 2022 was 0.581 tCO2/
MWh. This reflects the appropriate emission factors recommended by the mainland
government.

C&T believes that delivering energy saving messages to our employees is
critical to minimising electricity consumption.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

153,389 159,398 -3.77%
82 86 -4.65%

87 93 -6.45%

0.05 0.05 =

1 BENHERBRENDTRERAZTDRER  RAK
HMEFREMEFRNES

2 BPESFABE RN (EREHEENMEL
EREPE) c RPINEBEES R XARBHHE
RIIEENLEERER - RBEBEENRES
BARRMEORAAFERRESES  — T
BRETRRENNRETH068 TR

3 BERLEE LR RIEERZPAE -

4 HRPEMORERGTE  RPRAFREARKEM
BARBESAGHNENERES —E_=4
A05703 A &bt BB R/ R-ZFT_Z
RS R Z S Ll BB R/ - EREET R
BT HES B8 B B EE RS -

BB RER MM B TEERES
REELHEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR - fgRER®RE (E)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our Efforts in Improving Environmental Performance
(continued)

Paper Usage

Year ended 31 December

BEMHRE (&)
BEMBOIRERARKRE (B)

HERHE

BHE+-_A=+—HILFE

Total paper consumption (in tonnes) 4845 5R EFEE (JAMEET)
Intensity (by square meter of floor area) & (FF 7 KEE)
(Mg 75 K)

(tonnes/m?)

During the reporting year, apart from strictly monitoring printing usage,
C&T has fully transitioned to using 100% Post-Consumer Waste (PCW) Paper
for printing purposes in Hong Kong office. By utilising post-consumer waste
as a raw material, PCW paper helps divert paper and cardboard waste from
landfills, promoting a circular economy and reducing the amount of waste
sent for disposal. The production of PCW paper generally requires less
energy compared to virgin paper, as it bypasses the pulping and bleaching
processes associated with virgin fiber production. This results in lower
greenhouse gas emissions and reduced energy consumption, contributing
to overall environmental sustainability.

Our Green Procurement Practices
Our dedication to the environment is evident in our procurement practices.

As part of our operational support, we procure electronic and paper
products that have an environmental impact throughout their life cycles.
In response, we have developed a Green Procurement Policy that governs
our purchasing practices in day-to-day operations. In addition to our regular
practices in green procurement, certain criteria were added when choosing
suppliers, such as product environmental certification, fair trade label and
sustainability statement.

As a way of saving cost, the policy also encourages our staff to purchase
products with less packing and greater durability.

1.5 14 +7.14%

0.0004 0.0004 =

RBEFE R TEREZINENEREIN -
EEERLNEL 2EE A 100% 8 BI&RERIES
ER® - BBERBBRBERIESRME B
BRERA R R R AR ERIEHERR DR -
REBREE WHIOXERENBEYHUE -
HRERAL  LERBERERA —RFBTERD
Mgl AREGERREMGEERBOR
RREABRE - MBIk EREHRNMER
HIE APRBRERENAISERR -

BPNZeRBER

BAWRBESR A ERRREHIRERNESR - 3L
MBEETRERERERFRBEER - it
FERHEREEMBRTPEHRBENTE -
t WP ZASKBRR - RERFMXA
FEETHNEERR ERCRBEEMRZIN
BFVEEHKEHEREEN T ETHRE - flan
BREMRE A FESEBENAFERRESR -

REERE BRNTZBEEEERIBER
B EmR

MERSEERERAR —FT=FFR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gREARE ()

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) RPWIRIE (8)
Our Contribution to Community RO ENER

1 PARTNERSHIPS

FOR THE GOALS

&

C&T is devoted to developing an inclusive and caring society focusing on
the human health and the environmental areas. Our target beneficiaries are
children in poverty, underprivileged families and the physically impaired.

MBS HZERABLRBAENLES  BENAR
BEMRRES BEXRSBEEHEE 3%
RESZEMBREAL - BAATAIE - HIE

As set out below, employees were encouraged to participate in different

voluntary services and charitable activities.

Organisers

A

BEESLERERTIRBELREZEY -

Contribution

Rt

17 March 2023 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Skip Lunch Day Donation
—E=%=A++H BERHS [ I18A B
18 June 2023 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Green Low Carbon Day Donation
—ZE_=%XATN\H BERHS e=NiN T3S B
24 June 2023 WWEF-Hong Kong Hong Kong Island Flag Day Flag Selling
—E=FRAZTWA ERER(FE)ELE EEEEHA B
30 June 2023 Green Council Green Day Commemorative Pin Charity ~ Charity Product Sale
“2-=FAA=tE AREER Sale EHESRE
[BERGEH RSB ERERT
30 June 2023 WWF-Hong Kong WWEF Gold Flag Charity Sale Flag Selling
—E=FXHA=1H ERER(FE)ELE IR =)
7 July 2023 Médecins Sans Frontieres Hong Kong MSF Day Donation
—TZ=F+A+H (MSF) EEAELH B
BERARL (FE)
26 August 2023 St. James's Settlement Elderly Visitation Activity Elderly Visitation
—E-=%)\BZ+RXH ERXEHS RERDED rakE
30 September 2023 The Community Chest of Hong Kong Mooncake Charity Sale Charity Product Sale
—E=%AHA=1H BERHT NI i REEMES
30 September 2023 Fu Hong Society Mooncake Charity Sale Charity Product Sale
“To=FAA=HR KEE AYEEER EEESRE
12 October 2023 Orbis Orbis World Sight Day Donation
—T-_=%+A+=H R Hf By Mt RREH BX
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERARE ()

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Our contribution to community (continued)

Organisers

BRHNERE (&)

83

BMYE LB ER ()

Contribution

15 October 2023
—EZ=%+A+HA
27 October 2023
—E-=F+HA=++H
30 October 2023
—EZ=%+HA=+H
30 October 2023
—ZE-=F+A=+H
2 December 2023
—EZ=%+ZAZH
2 December 2023
—EZ=f+ZAZ=H

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZA=+—H

EREE

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth

BEEGREFHE

Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation

WHEENRERES

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth

EEBRFFHE

The Community Chest of Hong Kong
BELRE

Fu Hong Society
KEg

The Community Chest of Hong Kong
BELRE

Hong Kong Red Cross
BALTTE

=

Dress Red for Thalassaemia

WEERIKHA

"Gift for Love” Cookie Charity Sale
(55 7

Dress Casual Day
NameERA

Fu Hong Society “Walk - In"
Walkathon 2023
KRS [Walk - In] 17852023

Love Teeth Day
27 H

Pass-it-On Campaign 2023
EOMEERITE 2023

MR EEER AR

B
Charity Walk
BEST

Donation

/R

Charity Product Sale
REEMRE

Donation

/R

Charity Walk
BEST

Donation

BN

Charity Product Sale
REEMEE

—Eo=HER
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OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) B PHIRE (&)
Awards and Recognition 18 ] 8 A
The Group has obtained and held the following major awards and REDEIF &hﬁMTI RERFE

certifications:

Year Organisers Awards

£ EE ®17

Since 2015 The Hong Kong Council of Social Service Caring Company

B-Z—hFE BELSRBEHE SRR R IR

Since 2015 The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small Partner Employer Award

BE-_Z—RHFH and Medium Business REBR
EERNEIMRERS

Since 2017 Federation of Hong Kong Industries Industry Cares

BZZ—tF HEIELS TEREL

Since 2018 Environmental Campaign Committee EnergywiSe Certificate

BZZE-\F RREEPEEY EigEEE

Since 2018 Environmental Campaign Committee Wastewi$e Certificate

BZZE-/\F RREEPEESY MEEEE

Since 2018 Hong Kong Productivity Council Hong Kong Green Organisation

BZZE-\F BEEENRER BBREHE

Since 2019 Hong Kong Productivity Council Happy Company

B-Z-NFk BEEENRES /0 TYER

Since 2019 Environment Bureau and The Electrical and Energy Saving Charter and 4Ts Charter

BT hER Mechanical Services Department EiRE KB RATHE
RERBMKEEIIEE

Since 2020 Department of Health and Advisory Mental Health Workplace Charter

B_Z-TF Committee on Mental Health BeRERBSNE
BREERKEBREEAAZES

Since 2021 Green Council Green Council Corporate Membership — Bronze Membership

B-ZE-—FE RREES rEEEFE-AREE

2018, 2019, 2022 & HSBC and Business Environment Council HSBC Living Business ESG Award

2023 fELRTAEARRGS - Certificate of Merit (2018 & 2019)

—E-N\F- - Certificate of Excellence (2022 & 2023)

—E-NF [ELLEHTEBNIRE HERERE

“ECCFR - BEEZBRK(CE-N\FR-_ZT-NF)

—BE-Z=F - BREBK(CZE_—_FR-FT_=%F)
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ENV|RONMENTAL SOClAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OUR ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) BEMHRE (&)
Awards and Recognition (continued) RERABA (&)

Year Organisers Awards

£ FE ®15

2019, 2022 & 2023 Hong Kong Productivity Council Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence

—NEF - EREENRER BBRIRE WA

TE-FR

—E=F

2022 SocietyNext Foundation INNOESG Prize

T HHEARES INNOESG 22

2023 Green Councdil UNSDG Achievement Award Hong Kong -

—ET=F RIRIBEE (Organisation Award — Merit)

BMARTRHEERA R EMKE
(HEERIE : BRRIRLE)

2023 World Green Organisation Green Office Label and Eco-Healthy V\/orkplace Label

—EBo=4 R AR A A memAEEGRERIERER

2023 Equal Opportunities Commission Racial Diversity and Inclusion Charter for Employers

=4 TERSRES BRZTHRMEENE

2023 ICAC Business Sector Integrity Charter

B4 BRAE HEAE
Future Directions R T [
C&T is committed to furthering business excellence through dedicated RIS N ERARIERE HERER/AFTEHD
efforts in ESG. In 2024, the Group will continue to focus on two key areas: T HERREUEZ - R_T_WHF XK
enhancing employee education and engagement to raise awareness on EEBEEERAMEREBED : NMEEEH
sustainability and improving the sustainability performance of our office BRSHEE URSYHIBEZENERERNK
assets and facilities. Through diverse initiatives and business solutions, we ERMBRAEEERZBHOAIFERE - &M
aim to make a meaningful contribution to building a sustainable society. EEZEREZTILNEREREB TR RERD

SERRMOTEIELER ©

g 2R BB R AR T SFER
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

B FTIRIR
EE]

N&éﬂi%éﬁ

&4 sl

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH [Remarks &
A.Environmental A 3R3E
Aspect Al: Emissions [BE A1 : HEFRYD

Al

General Information on: Our relationship with the
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and environment
— AR EE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations BPERB R
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BRARER FORZE RPN - MK R T EEs
BENEEREYVNELSN
@ BE: K
() BFHBTABERZENBBEELR
BB R} o
KPIAT. The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Not material C&T's operation does not
RARAE )&TETT Pemun s i8R AR HE i EUE - TEX involve emission to air and

discharge to water and land
in significant quantities.
Therefore, these figures are
not disclosed.
MR E L ERIEP U E
MZE5R KR KEHE
FCOE o BRIk F AP 3 A 45
BRABUR -

KPI A1.2
FASE A MIEIR
A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)

greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

B (BE) kepREE (BE2) AEREH 51

(Mﬂfﬁ;ﬁr%) N (mER) mE (A GES S
ERMEETE) °

\I]]

P
=gl =

#T

Our efforts in improving
environmental performance

BB RERERR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - gRERARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BXARE HEREAHREES
ol (&)
ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPI'AT.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material C&T's operation does not
RE 82 45 IEHZ | where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production | T~E A involve hazardous waste
A13 volume, per facility). generation in significant
FFEABEREEDES (U E) kK (ER) & quantities. Therefore, this
E(MASESESMN §EREE) - figure is not disclosed.
M RE L ERIER U E
EXREBEEY - At
B R R 2 B o
KPIATA4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material C&T's operation does not
RS 45 IEHZE | where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production | T~NE X involve non-hazardous waste
Al4 volume, per facility). generation in significant
FrEAEEREEYSEE (UEE) R (ER) = quantities. Therefore, this
E(MNEESEN §ERBTE) - figure is not disclosed.
RIS TS & E BRI &
EERERZTEY - At
A R FR AR o
KPIA1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to | Climate change

RA SR B R AR
A15

achieve them.
WA L ERME B B R A ESEH B IZME
BUH) B -

TR

KPIA1.6
PR AE IR IR
A16

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

MR REERESEEMN L RiEAPAE]
SNHVBRE R R RAED G W B RIS o

ESG governance structure,
commitment and strategy,
our relationship with the
environment, climate
change and our efforts in
improving environmental
performance

RE e kERRE -
AEHE N B - T PIERIR
SRR - mIREE R
BB B ERRERSR

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BIFRE HERERHKREES
#5| (8§)

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH [Remarks &

Aspect A2: Use of Resources  [ETE A2 : B R A

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Our environment
Disclosure energy, water and other raw materials. HPIHIRIE

—RREEE BRERER (BIEEIR KREMERMED HBUR

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Our efforts in improving
RASR 4B IEHZ | (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and environmental performance
A2.1 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). | T FIB A ZIRIRKIR

BB SN EE RS EZEER(NE - ®Klom)
REECATETRNAE) REE(MNEEEE
i - FIEREE) o

KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of | Not material C&T's operation does not

BAHEAE WIEHZ | production volume, per facility). TEX involve consumption of

A2.2 BFKEREE (WABEREN BEXRETE) water in significant quantities.
Therefore, this figure is not
disclosed.

RIS 75 B R B A
£7K8 R o Ut B I 4
RIS -

KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and ESG governance structure,

RS 45 IE1Z | steps taken to achieve them. commitment and strategy

A23 A FTET S MR IRE A M B E R AERBME |and cimate change,
IEETERE A 20 B © our efforts in improving

environmental performance
RIE e REBERERE -

AR R R AR
BB ERREREI
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Not material C&T's operation does not
RS 4B UIE1Z | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set | TNE X involve consumption of
A24 and steps taken to achieve them. water in significant quantities.
it SREUE A KOR LRl BERERE - ARFTEI 7 Therefore, this indicator is not
AR B R R RESIAME FERRE L8R - disclosed.

RMEBXBEELBREEXN
EKER o B IRAI AL £
BEZIER -

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in | Not material As an IT services provider, C&T
BAH2AE WFETZ [ tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit TEKX does not produce any finished
A2.5 produced. products. For quantities of
SN AT BEM BB E (ABEFTE) & (iEA) paper consumed, please
FAESBMEE - refer to “Our efforts in
improving environmental
performance”.

EREMBE R e
RN EEERKm - A
FAAEZNMKRE
FL2HRABNEER
REHR -
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B X AT IR
#ol| (4&)

RIE - HERE

AR EES

ESG Aspects

B HERERBREER

BEED

Disclosed in

(k=3

Remarks

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JETE A3 :

RERRAER

A3.1

taken to manage them.
MO EBEHHRBELRAERNERTER
RREEEEZENTE -

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts Our relationship with the As an IT services provider, we

Disclosure on the environment and natural resources. environment consider our operation not

— I E BIRZITAEIRRE R RAEREKRERNTZENBOR | R PIEIRIBENEER impacting the environmental
and natural resources
significantly.
EREARERG ALrER
BB RARBEEHR
BRANE R MIERK &=
KB o

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on Not material As an IT services provider, we

RASE A5 MFETZ | the environment and natural resources and the actions | NE X consider our operation not

impacting the environmental
and natural resources
significantly.
fFZ%E%Eﬂ%#TﬁHE%%ﬁ%E%E%
BARBRARBEEHIR
ﬁ&i%éﬁﬂﬁ%&i
N2

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA: TIREE

PR AE IR IR
A4.1

which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
MlE R LA g HETAEETENENRIR
HEREE - REHTH -

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Climate change
Disclosure climate-related issues which have impacted, and those | AR &1L
—MEE which may impact, the issuer.
BRI MEHERERAIGEEHRTAELRENE
ARIRHEBEENBR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate change

FIRRIL

M EREEEGRA —E-=FFR
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RE - gREARE ()

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

BRXARE HERERREES

=5l (%)

ESGAspects B - HERERBREEE Disclosedin #ZEZEH |[Remarks & &
B.Social B.#t&
Aspect B1:Employment [EE B1 : (&
General Information on: Our talent
Disclosure (@  the policies; and BIEAA
— AR EE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

EAETMREE BERSM  IERS - BRE -

FERE  Zl  REBARE A8 RN :

@ BER: Kk

(o) BFHBETABERZENBBEELRN

BYE R} o

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for Diversity and inclusiveness
BAHEAE WIEHZ | example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical | % Joib 26 A 1E
B1.1 region.

RIS EEEE (2B  FRAR R

RS D EEESRE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Diversity and inclusiveness
R 45 IEHZ | geographical region. %A e /M
B1.2 RMR - FhAR R RE S HEERARLLE -

Aspect B2: Health

£y
and Safety [EMER2 : f@RELTZE

General Information on: Promoting employee health
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and and well-being
— AR EE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations R EEERE LB
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BRRHLZ2TERERMREBESROBELRE
=0
@ EHE:K
() BFHETABERTZENHBERZLSEH
BWEH -
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED) BMXRE e RERBERES
ol (&)
ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Promoting employee health
BAH2AE WIEHZ | each of the past three years including the reporting year. | and well-being
B2.1 BEAZF (BEREFE)BFEAITHMNAZE (B EEREREMN
gz
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Promoting employee health
FREMER |BILBEXIERS- and well-being
B2.2 RTHE 8 R R AEit
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Promoting employee health
BAS AR IEIR | adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. and well-being
B2.3 M PTRAM R EE LT DG - ARBER (B EEREREN
TRERAFE-
Aspect B3: Development and Training  [E T B3 : & K
General Policies on improving employees'knowledge and skills | Developing talent
Disclosure for discharging duties at work. Description of training AAER
—REE activities.
BERARAHE S BT LIERE BV A R s e BUR
FIEIES) o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Developing talent
BAH2AE WIETZ | employee category (e.g. senior management, middle AT ERE
B3.1 management).
BRUFINEEENE D (NEREEE  PRER
B)NXIEEBDL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by | Developing talent
BAHE A WIEHZ | gender and employee category. AT ER
B3.2 BRUFINEEERED  BEEETKZIENTF
HIRFE -
B ESEEFRA T - ZFFR
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

B FTIRIR
=5l (%)

N ?‘ig};i%q/ﬁ

&4 sl

ESG Aspects

R-HERERBEER

Disclosed in

(i-E=3

Remarks

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[ETE B4 : 4 T %8

General Information on: Being an employer of choice | As an IT services provider, we
Disclosure (@  the policies; and RAEBEEE mainly employ talents who
— e H R (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations have specific qualifications
that have a significant impact on the issuer and work experience. We
relating to preventing child and forced labour. consider the risk in engaging
B IEET RAEH 2 TH child and forced labor is very
@ BE:K low.
() BFHBETABERTZENRBEELRN REMB SRS ER -
BB R o BMTERAAEREE
FE N AR TR SR AT -
BHARBERETI ARG
BTHRRIFFER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Low risk See remark for KPI B4
R 4E SRIE1Z | to avoid child and forced labour. 1K B “General Disclosure”
B4.1 it BB ERARSE T REHST - REERIEER — &
B fBet
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Low risk See remark for KPI B4
BASR4E TIETE [ when discovered. 1K = B “General Disclosure”
B4.2 IR R R IE R B R A B ISR TR 25 REERIEER — K

WEE B -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

JEmBs : fEEERE

PR AR IR IR
B5.1

minm s D HEHmEAE -

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of | Supply chain management
Disclosure the supply chain. e

— R BT R SR IR IR Mt g AR R

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain management

R E R

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | Supply chain management
BAHEAE WIEAZ | number of suppliers where the practices are being HEEERE
B5.2 implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
B A ERHED - mERTTEEED
WHEREE  ALRBBENRTRERTE -
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B X P IR
?ﬂ%@

CHERE

AR EES

monitored.

it EREHERREESZBRFRER KRB
B ARMEBRITRERITE -

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | Supply chain management
BAH2AE WHEHZ | and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are | £t i §& & 12
B5.3 implemented and monitored.
A A E R R S RSO IRIE It g
BB - ARMEBRITRERTE -
KPIB5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply chain management
BAIR B IR | environmentally preferable products and services when | £ & # & 12
B54 selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and

Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility

[ETB6 : EMmEIT

General
Disclosure

—RWE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

FEMREERMRENREREZSE - BS 12

BRALBEEARBR S ED

@ BX:K

(b) BEBFHBETABERZENEERZLRD
B -

Continuous improvement in
quality service

BERBHFESE

KPI B6.1
FAS A BT
B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EESCEXAEMBETRLEBEEFIERMA
ER =R

Not applicable
N E A

As an IT services provider,
C&T does not produce any
tangible products, and the
software products in general
do not exert any control

over hardwares that can
pose safety and healthy
consequence. This indicator is
therefore not applicable.
TEREMBIRIGHER -
R A EE A ER -
HEMHER RIS
AREER R B Eﬁk)ﬁ?%;
E’JﬁEﬁ—LﬂET—H i o

It EZ IR °

T

FHEBEARAT B =FFW
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BRXARE HERERREES

=5l (%)

REEFRTTE

ESGAspects RIE  HEBREARBREEE Disclosedin T ZH [Remarks &

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Continuous improvement in | Number of written products

BAHEAE WFEHZ | received and how they are dealt with. quality service and service related

B6.2 BEREARERRBRBHIRFEE AREBE L - |BERBOFESCE complaints is 0
BEREMANEDRRE
BIREFEE © 0

KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Protecting IP rights, data

RASEAE WIEHZ | protecting intellectual property rights. privacy and cybersecurity

B6.3 T it £ 4 o TR (R PE AN ERE A RA RV B A - REMBERE - BRN

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Continuous improvement in

RASEAE RIEAR | procedures. quality service

B6.4 B ERTERERE@BYIRF BERBGOFELICE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Protecting IP rights, data

BRI 1R | policies and how they are implemented and monitored. | privacy and cybersecurity

B6.5 HIUEEEERRERFLBEGE - ARAEENT |REDBERE - BRI

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EMEB7 - RE)T

General Information on: Upholding ethical conduct
Disclosure (@  the policies; and RIFEBIEST
— M H =R (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRAN L - 1R - BEFRIERES

@ EHE: K

(b)) BEBTEHBTAGERZEMNEMEZRE KRR

BEH -

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Upholding ethical conduct
BEH2 45 WIEHZ | practices brought against the issuer or its employees RIFBEEREST
B7.1 during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.

REERNHETASIEEERETEFENE

THRARMEVEE RFARER -
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Upholding ethical conduct
RIS 4E SMIE1Z [ procedures, and how they are implemented and RIFEBIRST
B7.2 monitored.

ol S iE i S B AR T - A MBI T R B

Tk e
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3] (,%;)
ESG Aspects CHERERBREER Disclosedin T ZH& [Remarks &
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Upholding ethical conduct
BAS AR IEAZ | directors and staff. RIFEEIRST
873 SRR E TR R E5HE -
Aspect B8: Community Investment [ETE B8 : #BEI&E
General Policies on community engagement to understand the | Our contribution to
Disclosure needs of the communities where the issuer operates community
— = and to ensure its activities take into consideration the | Fx 19 %1 4t [& 89 & &k
communities’interests.
BN RBER T RE Eﬁﬁ&%iliwa%ﬂﬁﬁf%
HEBEDHEE BT RMNRABER
KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Our contribution to
BAHEAE WFETZ | environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, | community
B8.1 sport). MR ER
EIERERE (HE BIERE  STHEKR @R
it - EE) °
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus | Our contribution to
R B BIER |area. community
B8.2 EEIHBRMPBER (e ELRRE) AT A = A B A
R EREEAR AT TEFFR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2023 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 using financial performance indicators is provided in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this report and other key
performance indicators are set out below.

Strategies

EZSE2REFTERERARAELEEHE
—E =+ A=t+—HLEFEZRELNM
B °

FEXK

ARBZEBXBR/RELER -EXEWER
BZEIBEBHBERMHERRM T - AKE
ZEIBXBUHENRFALBERES) -

E 3 )

REAREENEBEE ANREHEAEER
REBERENBE T _=F+_A=+—
BUEFERAZREMBARRBREENERES
HFEVRT - BENAFRZ [ ERmHmE]—& -

ERAMBRAERSHAKSERBE_T_=F
TZA=T—BLEFEANKAETHOTH
RAFHRZ [EFRE] > MEMRERERER
AIFR T3 e

Key Performance Indicators (“KPls"”)

g BEARER (ARERER

Maintain the Group’s liquidity for future development
REAEENESREBMAERKER
}3-/\\\ — T

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2023: HK$50.4 million
(2022‘ HK$60.6 million)
ZFENRE R

SIREREFR 504088 7T

(_ = __E 6,060 87 70)

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2023: HK$316.1 million
(31 December 2022: HK$309.8 million)
RZB_=F+_A=+—HANRELKERRSEE

3R (ZE_—F+-_A=+—8:

Enrich and enhance the Group's product portfolio

LEMRAAEENERES

Keep the Group’s staff turnover rate with no material adverse
change

HARAEEE T RALRAEERTHNED

s —F
N— = —
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3.098 1278 7T)

Number of new product/module/features launched: 7 (2022: 9)

HER/MEH e BMEE

7(ZE==F:9)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated
staff during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at
the year end date, in 2023: 20% (2022: 27%)

“=FMEIRARX (IR FARBLBERES T AR

URFHEBAREBE TASGHE

) 1 20% (ZE = ZF : 27%)



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk
The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both

organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk
The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding

promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group's business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group’s operations and financial performance. The Board also considers
the economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic
risk as well as the business risk. The management meets at least monthly
to review the business developments of the Group and keeps the Board
informed on any issues identified.

TERBREFHABER

AEBNMBRR KEXE EBRATRA
REXTRERNMTAREEMTZE - AEEM
a8 Al 1) 3 22 L B N 1S BABA R SR A AN B R At
BRTXAzs ke FEARERALRR
W AEREBABEERKEFERNE M ER K
THBEER - o EREHERERNES
R - R TS EORTERIEE - BE - JRAlAE

RS R SRR - X R ER R KA R

THAEERS  NTLSEZAR -

R g e B3

EBREE KB BARIERARER A O - R
BREMBBUERANRENEGER - 01T
EHAANEMIMNRE  AEELEEFLT
& EENES T HAIERRE -

R ERE

ARER B )l B AR 1T 0 T 5 B D BB 4
e i A T HT PR B o REEEMMET 58
LUHERRKREERR A EHAREER
FBIRN  BEXERARBRERTNEE -

AEB-—ESRITABRENEBRREKRSE
BRAAKEZWARIR  LEERBRR NG
BREEE=EE-

Exe BT O RERNEATEREAT
MWAFER  ABHARE 2L RMBERR -
AR R R M EERARE EEQNEE
BRERZERTERAR EEENEEBANE
RO MR AREZ ZHER T WET
BE:SIE G

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence
The Group’s operations depend on its ability to innovate and the

successful deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly
its response to technological and industry developments, as well as its
ability to foresee and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive
technologies. The Group cannot be certain that technologies will be
developed in time to meet changing market conditions, that they will
perform according to expectations or that they will achieve commercial
acceptance. The Group has made relentless efforts in producing and
delivering premium products and high quality services. Looking forward,
the Company will continue with its research and innovation to enrich and
enhance its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk
The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to

attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk
In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various

financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group's earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 35 to the financial statements.

Hazard Risk

The Group’s business had been, to a certain extent, affected by the
recent global outbreaks of COVID-19. The global epidemic has resulted
in lockdowns and disruptions of transportations in various countries and
regions as well as a downward pressure in the global economy. In the event
that the outbreak of COVID-19 is not contained in Hong Kong, China or
globally in the near future, the economic activity across many industries in
the PRC, Hong Kong or worldwide, can be further adversely affected, which
could in turn have negative impact on the overall economy in the PRC,
Hong Kong and worldwide. Any economic downturn may adversely affect
the customer sentiment, weakening the demands for our products, and
in turn result in the reduction or even cessation of purchase orders for our
products, or delay in payment by our customers.

FTERBREFTHBER (&)

Bt %5 2 By

REBESBERT  AEEXZBMEERH
e BRERTE RPESREERAR -8
RIE N A SRE HA T B 4 AR 52 B 9 B IS AR O B A
LEEEBREATE -

AREBERN R EARKEEKRES B IRMHHEE
NHERER - FXREEAEREEHTZ B A
NEE LERAKEEEELREMEE
HAEHEMNEERTE ARETINER
HEERABOBEINEAR - I 48 EHEPT
FIAREENLD  FAFERMEINERR
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Climate Risk
Climate risk is firstly classified as the Group's material risk since 2021 and

was further evaluated from the impact of physical risk and transition risk.
The Board and the management were involved in managing such risk with
objective to reduce the impact from climate change.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group’s policies and practices for achieving compliance
with legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and
practices are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has in all material respects complied
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behaviour.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to
customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 19 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News" are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of "Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and to
arouse the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental
protection.

Further details are provided in the section headed "Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”of this annual report.

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HKS$1,500.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 126 to 257.

An interim dividend of 5.5 HK cents per ordinary share was paid on 18
September 2023. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 5.5 HK cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on
the Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 11 June 2024.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on pages 259 to 260. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND AWARDED SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and awarded
restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in notes 27 and
28 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company purchased 2,470,000 shares on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for an aggregate consideration
of HK$6,204,000 and these shares were cancelled or will be subsequently
cancelled by the Company. The summary details of those transactions are
as follows:

Number of
shares
repurchased

BERDHE

September 2023 —E-=FNA 46,000
October 2023 —E-=#+A 534,000
November 2023 —E-=F+—A 696,000
December 2023 —EBE-=F+-A 1,194,000

2,470,000

The purchase of the Company’s shares during the year was effected by
the directors, pursuant to the mandate from shareholders received at the
last annual general meeting, with a view to benefiting shareholders as a
whole by enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share of
the Group.

The trustee of the Company’s restricted share award scheme had,
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such scheme,
purchased from the market a total of 496,000 shares of the Company being
the restricted award shares during the year. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the year was approximately HK$1,130,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

BE BORHEAXRA LTRSS

FRARB—EHBARNREEBRARSAT
AR A & LA 48 R 186,204,000 7T B 2,470,000
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REZBMENT

Price per share

SRE®R

Total

Highest Lowest price paid
RS R ERNE L
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT TET
219 2.19 101
249 2.19 1,268
2.60 250 1,795
2.58 253 3,040
6,204

ARBREAZENEE  HEERE LER
REFASLERRE T 2REEL  §HER
NAKBzBREEFELERATN - #{EE
POREERER AR

FAR - AREERGRDEBFTENZIEAD
BIEZTERURETRENER  BTMEE
B RN A G 496,000 0% 15 1A EEN A R
& - FARBEZERNEINHBENR
1,130,000 7T °

B b REES  ARBHEEAMBERRR
FABERE BB EARFEMN LTHES

M EGEEERAR T =FFH

103



104

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$65,778,000, of which HK$13,493,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$47,147,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 41.8% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 30.3%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 33.4% of the total value
of external supplies purchased and services consumed for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 9.4%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam
Mr. Leung King San Sunny
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:
Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara

Professor Lee Kwok On Matthew (retired on 5 June 2023)
Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey (appointed on 20 March 2023)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung and Ms. Chan Yuen Shan Clara will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All INEDs of the Company renewed their appointments with the Company
for specific terms of three years but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Ms. Chan
Yuen Shan Clara, Mr. Poon Siu Hoi Casey and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 22 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the directors’

remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors and chief executive in
the share capital and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “"SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EENRG  REHEHzER

FR BEFHNEFCHETHERANRAHL
ARBEMMERR MG ERNHARE RS
MEBEAZRS  ZHAANTEEABE
BHEEAEE -

EEEN

RERNRBEERFHREHRIL  BETIHFE
EAEBARR2MHEMNEAT D EBHE
BRITBAH

EERTHRAZNKRG R EBERKD
ZEBERAR

RZBZ=F+-A=+—0 FEZRITH
RENARRREMBEE (EEREH MY
BRG (TS REEEALD FxvEp) 2 A Kk
HEROPEAE AR BARERZKBEERD
FINGREFEZECMPAEEKRE L
MERTAEFETEFRINFRETRISITHM
SARA MR ZERIAT

ERAEEBRZHR

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FERHEE o RESNE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s

Beneficially Controlled issued share

owned corporation capital

Name of directorand EERTHAR EARATE BT

chief executive s HEERER ZEBRIEHAT BRAEE DL

Directors E=

Ir.Ng Cheung Shing RERBRETIRM (@) 6,724,000 114,614,000 121,338,000 49.12

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RERTE 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 040

Mr. Leung King San Sunny RS #1704 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 042

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REREE 300,000 - 300,000 0.12
Chief executive THAR

Mr. Chung Kin Yip EEENE 240,000 - 240,000 0.10

9,294,000 114,614,000 123,908,000 50.16
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS BS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND 2T
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Bt
X
F:.%
mp
0

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EHEBEEIERGZHFR :
Percentage of
Number of shares the associated
BB ®A corporation’s
Name of Relationship Directly Through issued
Associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled share
Name of director corporation company shares owned corporation capital
16 2B
BARAF B 7B ZEB BT
ESgE HBEE BB 2B IR 43 Bl BERES SZEEAF BREBD L
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RRBAETIRM Technologies subsidiary deferred (Note i 5E (b)) TNERA
International ERFlZ BRERERL
Limited MEAR
R Z R ER LA
Notes: B 5E
(a) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao (a) CS. BV Limited 22 &M B A RIEBHEFBR A7)
Lien"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Ir. Ng Cheung Shing was ([BH#:]) B 11461400008 8% 10 - RERBEETR
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power Bh A RER CS. (BVI) Limited Z BE B A& 1718 sk 4|
at general meetings of CS. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or TE=p27—si A E 2R ZERE - MCS. BV Limited
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings AEREABIHRKREARS F{TERIZHTE=92
of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be — A ERERE A BEES R EEN -
interested in all shares held by Chao Lien. REBAATIREMBERARBHIZEZRER
MR ER -
(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b) 3%3,250000 Ix R ZRGEIER D B BHESE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the directors and MBENEEEIN RZE_=F+=_A=+—
chief executive had registered an interest or a short position in the shares H -#EEs RTHERNRN KA T sEE[H
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations BOEE 2RO EERD T EERIEFAR
that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as HIE G055 352 1678 F a0 8% » siiRIE 31T A
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the ERETEATSNEETFIZITHE AR AT
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers KBt 7 BEZR SR B ©
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DIRECTORS’RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Restricted share award scheme” below,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the "Renewed Date”"). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the "Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares will
then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting. The
aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time).

The Award Scheme shall be effective from the Renewed Date and shall
continue in full force and effect for a term of 10 years unless sooner
terminated as determined by the Board of Directors. The Award Scheme is
to expire on 31 May 2027.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.
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Egéﬁﬂ: ( Fi=| )
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BRFIR 0 ERBEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TREVEEE_=FF+_A=+—HILF
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December EWNZEEFTEITE T RERMN o8B REEE) -
2023.
Closing price
Number of Unvested Avarded Sh ot sares
umber of Unvested Awarded Shares immediatel
*BRERRHRA bebor
Transfer Fairvalue  thedateon
At Award in/(out) Vested At of awards at which
Name of category 1January during during during  31December Vesting period thedate  theawards
of participant 2023 the year theyear theyear 2023 Award date of Award Shares ofgrant  were granted
i RoB-=F BT 2R
= R 128 B3EBE  AEE-%
SRERZFRER -A-R  FREXR  EBA/(H) FAEEE Sr=F RERERS RRROBRY NATE  REKTE
HKS$ HKS$
B A7
Directors
£
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing 50000 = = (50,000) = 14May 2018 30 April 20190 30 April 2023 243 293
RRELETEN —3-)\f ‘*—HWH LES
BATMA  ZEZZEMAZTH
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing 150000 - - (50,000) 100,000 6June 2022 30 June 2023 t0 30 June 2025 224 260
REBEETREM “E--F -E-CERASTHEE
AR ZECRESAAZ1A
Ir Ng Cheung Shing - 100000 - - 100000 28 Septernber 2023 30 April 2026 to 30 Aprl 2027 192 212
RRBLETEN “E-CE CZCREMACTHE
AAZTNE  “E-LFMAZTE
Mr. Cheung WaiLam 50000 - - (50,000 - 14May 2018 30 April 20190 30 April 2023 243 293
RERLE “E-\F ZE-NERAZ+RE
RATEA  ZE-ZEMAZTA
Mr.Ng Kwok Keung 50,000 - - (50,000) - 14May 2018 30 April 2019t0 30 April 2023 28 293
REREE “T-N% ﬁ#@ﬂ THE
TATEE  ZBZZHMA=tTH
Mr.Ng Kwok Keung 150,000 - - (50,000 100,000 6June2022 30 June 2023 to 30 June 2025 224 260
RERRE ZRCCF CRCZERACTHEE
/\ﬂ/\E _?—ﬂg/\ﬂ %H
Mr.Ng Kwok Keung - 100000 - - 100000 28 September 2023 30 Apri 2026 to 30 April 2027 192 12
REBEE “E-ZE CEZCRENAZTHEE
ABZTNE  ZE-+EMAZ1E
(Chief executive
(EE
Mr. Chung Kin Yip - 240,000 - - 240000 28 September 2023 30 September 2024 to 192 12
BREELE —E-cE 30 September 2026
ARZTNR ZE-BENA=THE
ZEINEAACTR
Sub-total
it 450000 440000 - (250000) 640,000
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

Name of category

of participant

At

1January

03
B

—g-=

—_F==

SREREHRER

Two top-paid individuals
(excluding Directors and
the Chief Executive)

REEHFHNEA
(ESRTHAARN

Inaggregate
ait
A

In aggregate

4t

In aggregate

a

In aggregate

4

-A-H

40,000

40,000

120000

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

N LELLUEE

Transfer
in/(out)
during

the year

Award
during
the year

£

FRERE  EA/()

o 25000

- (20000

- 90,000

60,000 -

Vested At
during
the year

31 December
2023
RZBzZf
128

EREER =t-H

(65,000) S

(20000 -

(70,000)

140,000

- 60,000

Sub-total
hit

200,000

60,000 95,000

(155,000) 200000
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AR RO RS (F)

Award date

RAZRAM

14May 2018
“E-)\F
EATRA

4 July 2019
—E-NE
tARA

6June 2022
“E-CoE
~ARH

28 September 2023
—3CE
ARZTAR

Fair value
of awards at
the date

of grant

Vesting period
of Award Shares

BFERA
HATE
HKS

B3

RRRHERS

30 April 2019 to 30 April 2023 1483
“T-MEMAZTEE
= R

30 June 20200 30 June 2024 31
SEEERASIRE
“E-mE~AZ1H

30 June 2023 t0 30 June 2025 24
“E-TERATHEE
“E3-R%5A=1H

30 April 2026 t0 30 Apri 2027 192
“E-RERAZTRE
“E-+EMA=1H

Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before

the date on
which

the awards
were granted
RT%R
REA-X
Gl
HK$

A7

293

377

260
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EERRE(H)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME AR R0 REE 8 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Closing price
of the shares
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares immediately
ABRRRRAOHE [
Transfer Fairvalue  thedateon
At Award in/(out) Vested At of awards at which
Name of category 1 January during during during 31 December Vesting period thedate  theawards
of participant 2023 the year the year the year 2023 Award date of Award Shares ofgrant  were granted
Rz RoB-zF R7ER
St 3 £ = RTREAE  AHA-X
SaENEFRER -B-B EREHRE  EA/(R) FACEHRE Sqr=f RiZBAH RRROERH WATE  ROUTE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other employees
EftfEE
In aggregate 140,000 = (25,000 (115,000) S 14May 2018 30 April 201910 30 April 2023 243 293
ait ZE-\f ZE-NEMA=TRE
FAtMA  -3-=FWA=1A
In aggregate 48000 = 20,000 (24,000 44000 4July2019 30 June 202010 30 June 2024 3N 377
aif “T-hE ZECEENACHAE
tARE  ZE-RFAAZTA
In aggregate 750000 - (90000 (220000 440,000 6June 2022 30 June 2023 t0 30 June 2025 224 260
aif ZRICE CBCZERACTRE
~ARE ZECZRFARZTH
In aggregate - 260000 - - 260000 28 September 2023 30 September 2024 to 192 212
Bt “EoCE 30 September 2026
AAZTNB ZZZEEAA=1RE
ZRIRENARZTH
In aggregate - 50,000 - - 50000 28September2023 30 April 2026 to 30 April 2027 19 AV
At “3-ZE CECREMACTRE
ABZTNE  ZE-HEMAZ1E
Sub-fotal
Izt 938,000 310000 (95000 (359000) 794000
Total
@t 1,588,000 810000 - (764,000) 1634000

B X EE AR A A T SFER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
immediately before the dates on which the awards were vested during the
year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$2.32 (31 December 2022: HK$2.65).

* No purchase price is payable by the employees for the Awarded
Shares.
* There are no performance targets attached to the Awarded Shares.

Review by Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee of the Board is tasked within its term of

reference to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered and approved
the grant of restricted award shares to the Executive Directors, senior
executives and certain staff members for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations as well as to retain them for the continual
development of the Group.

Amendments to the Listing Rules relating to share scheme of listed issuers
became effective on 1 January 2023. As provided under the transitional
arrangements, the Company can continue to make grants to participants
eligible under the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules under the
existing Award Scheme until refreshment or expiry of the existing scheme
mandate.

The outstanding Awarded Shares granted under the Award Scheme are
subject to a vesting period of approximately 12 months. For the sake of
simplicity and administrative consistency, the Company has conventionally
adopted the end of the month immediately before or after the anniversary
of the date of grant of the Award Shares as the first vesting date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

Review by Remuneration Committee (continued)
The Company considers that such arrangement is in spirit consistent

with the requirement set out in Rule 17.03F of the Listing Rules, as the
vesting period would only fall short of 12 months by a short period of
time. In addition, the Awarded Shares will generally be vested annually
and evenly in several batches over a timespan of one to five years, which
shows the Company'’s intention to retain the grantees for the continual
development of the Group and contribution to the and long-term success
of the operation of the Group. At the same time, the Company could retain
more flexibility to account for and formulate its share award schedule in
accordance with its current practice. The Company considers that the
current vesting period for the Awarded Shares is appropriate and in line
with the purpose of the Award Scheme.

It is one of the purposes of the Award Scheme that equity-based
remuneration may serve as an alternative source of remuneration for
the Company to provide rewards to the employees who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operation. Share awards have been part
of the remuneration structure of the Company for rewarding historical
contributions of employees. The Company considers that the grants of the
Awarded Shares were primarily based on time-based vesting criteria instead
of performance-based vesting condition, which would effectively satisfy the
objective to remunerate and reward past performances while at the same
time provide sufficient incentive for the grantees to remain at the Company.
The Directors consider that it is beneficial to the Company and consistent
with the purpose of the Award Scheme if the Company is able to offer a
variety of emolument packages taking different forms based on its needs
and the actual circumstance, which would give the Company maximum
flexibility in order to attract or retain talents.

BRI 47 R B a8 ()

EhFMESSEHN (&)
AARRG BRAZHEERES LR ETRAUNE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEWRE(HE)

FTERRREMAL (EFADF
EEWTHAR) RO REEK
2 s

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

NR-ZBE-=F+-A=+—8 LA TAKXKAT
RN EREES R EIRDEBIEETE
GFEZHERZEMARGARARIEZHITRARE

As at 31 December 2023, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

NN

section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions:

A% 50 DA 2 #ERS ¢

®R:

Percentage of
Numberof  The Company’s Number of
ordinary Issued share share options
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital held
EARRE R
ARERREE/ LR BoRERME s EREE RABAL FisBREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited @) Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 4640 -
BYMNRBRAF BERELER
CS. (BVI) Limited €) Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 4640 -
BRI RA
Puttney Investment Limited (‘PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.80 -
BEREGER
Hutchison International Limited (‘HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.80 -
FRIAHRA
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (‘HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.80 -
MEEHARRA ([FE]) BBRREHRA
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.80 -
RIGEREBRARAR ([RE]) FRTAHRA
CKHutchison Holdings Limited ("CKHH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.80 -
RINCERBRAR(RM]) BRREHRA
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1084 -
X EREREAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)
Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of
this report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing
connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

FERRREMAL (EFADT
EEWTHAR) RO REEK
7z (&)

TR (&)
fi s -

(@  REBRTNARS[EFNRO RAAERN Z#a
%

) PLAHLZZEWBRAR HLEIEMEZZEAM
BRrl -REARMZZEMNBAR  MEEZ
MEBARBENMEZRREANS EHEAITESRE
BB =9 2 —MRERE  IRBRHFHFRBAE KO -
R~ R - AE K HILEARER PILETH 29,148,938
BRAA R B P B -

BREMBEREN RZE_=FF+=_A=+—
B BREESHR EXEZRRG RERERGK
ZHRBENAR ] —HZARAARESZIN  BETM
ATRAR TR BN A REES
MERE GBI 336 I8 ATrotr 2Rl A R ©

FR-BERBLETAUNFUIAERATRELZ

HABE

ARNRIRAEE N ABBEFBHNYBEHREK
BosE3T -

RADBIFRE
BREARAAMTBZEANLRESRA

MARFEBRH ARG EBITRALEEZLE
5% ARALTHEE °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Egéiﬁi(nﬁ)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to year end, on 24 January 2024, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company had entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party and disposed an investment property
in PRC at a consideration of approximately RMB2.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.8 million).

Save as disclosed in the report, there is no other material subsequent event

undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEN RS

EY =i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 126 to 257, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BNBAGEEERATAZERR

(REFRZEZME L BERAA)

=r
=

RZHENE T EAZ 5 126 2 257 B Fr & BI B &
GEBARAR(ERARADEEWBAR (&
S8 Z2HREVB®RE HFEER ===
F+ZRA=T—B2ZEBEEHHBRRE  UEE
EZELEFEZEABERR GE2EKER
BERZEHRREABEERER  UREKA
P RMEW T (BIEERSABERER) -

AZHERE SR BHRREREETB G
MAg ((BEGEAE]) B ZBEBHBER
SEA((FEHBHREED]) EERFibRBR
ERER_ZT_=F+-_A=t+—BZ&eH
BARAAREBEZBEFEZHZAMBERR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEEXER

Revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
certain contract revenue from the provision of application
services over time, generally using the input methods, by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services. Input methods recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation. The determination
of the progress towards complete satisfaction of the services
involves significant management judgements and estimates,
including various factors affecting the total expected inputs to
the complete satisfaction of the services.

We focus on this matter due to the significance of such revenue
and the significant accounting judgements and estimates
required in estimating the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the services.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates are included in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FKEEPERIAHA
BE_T_=F+_A=1T—"HLFE BEEEZ2KRZ
RETIRBHER  BREERRRERARENETS
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FSE
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EHEERSTHE RG22 HEEBEINGE
PIFE3 ©

R R

RREXEE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B2 BTNAEEBRERSEE

Our related key audited procedures included, amongst others, the
following:

We obtained an understanding and performed testing of the
Group's controls over its process to recognise contract revenue
from the provision of application services, including the
measurement of the progress towards complete satisfaction of
application services. We selected a sample of relevant contracts
entered into during the year to obtain understanding of their
key contract terms, such as contract price, scope of services
and deliverables. We checked to their project status reports
and related supporting documents showing, for example, costs
incurred to date relative to the total expected costs to the
complete satisfaction of the services to evaluate the measure of
progress used by management for revenue recognition.

Apart from the above, we assessed the significant judgements
and estimates made by management through the examination
of a sample of project documentation, including, inter alia, the
total expected inputs, by checking to relevant internal records
and/or the invoices or quotations provided by subcontractors/
other suppliers, and discussion of the status of those projects in
progress and relevant factors affecting the total expected inputs
to the complete satisfaction of the services with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) AREZEE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REEZEE ARz BT NAEERREREE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, We evaluated management’s impairment assessments of the
the Group had goodwill (the “Goodwill”) acquired through Goodwill and the key audit procedures we performed included,
business combinations with a total carrying amount of inter alia, the following:

approximately HK$133 million allocated to the cash-generating

units (the “CGUs") of various application services. . assessing the key assumptions and estimates used in
management’s respective value in use calculations using

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently discounted cash flow projections, including, inter alia,

if events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying budgeted/forecasted revenues and margins, growth rates

amount may be impaired. Impairment is determined by and discounted rates;

assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the

goodwill relates and whether the recoverable amount of - obtaining an understanding of the current and expected

that CGU is less than its carrying amount. For the year under future developments of the respective CGUs and factors

review, the recoverable amount of each of the CGUs has been that might affect key assumptions and estimates of the

determined based on the CGU’s value in use calculation using cash flow projections and discount rates applied;

cash flow projections specific to the CGU and applying a
discount rate which reflects specific risks associated with the
CGU.

B BB B A1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By %BE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RREEZEE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AR 2 BT NAEERREELEE

REEZER

The impairment testing of goodwill required management to

make certain significant accounting estimates and assumptions
that would affect the reported amount of goodwill and related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of the total balance
involved and the significant judgements and estimates required
in determining the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates and impairment testing of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

EEERNAABBERERAFLE TERNEE LR
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DHER A M RERMEI K16

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology used and certain key
assumptions and estimates made by management in their
goodwill impairment assessments, including, inter alia,
the specific discount rates and long-term growth rates
applicable to the respective CGUs;

evaluating management’s assessments about reasonable
possible changes in certain key assumptions and estimates,
as appropriate; and

assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By %BE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By %BE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

18 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEREmR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—Z =4+ —-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_=HF B
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
REVENUE N 5 257,504 268,719
Cost of sales and services SHE K AR TS A A (121,663) (123,719)
Gross profit E7 135,841 145,000
Other income and gains, net H A A K W =8 5 16,271 13,642
Foreign exchange differences, net VE W 2 R ER 2 866
Fair value losses, net: NFEEIEFE
Financial assets at fair value through EAFELER AR
profit or loss LG EE (1,219) (2,332)
Investment properties wEYE (1,872) (80)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDHMAX (34,423) (32,153)
General and administrative expenses, net — M RITBA S F 5 (62,906) (62,490)
Finance cost & A 7 (469) 397)
Other expenses HiAx (13,442) (10,624)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A % 6 37,783 51,432
Income tax expense FrBHiAx 10 (4,540) (4,467)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R EEBRF 33,243 46,965
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BUTF AL :
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZFEPN 33,350 47,011
Non-controlling interests FE T2 I 1 A 2 (107) (46)
33,243 46,965
2023 2022
HK cents HK cents
AL bl
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO &2 FEERKRE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EBiEESRAZR
PARENT 12
Basic HAR 13.50 19.02
Diluted e 13.44 18.94

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



127

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mETERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—ZF —=F+—-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7 5 A 33,243 46,965
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hi2mEUWBA

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be  REEHIR » EE2mEKEA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  (E518) ATREEF D AR B2 K ¢

Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBIINEBREE ZERZH

operations 27 (4,147)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR REEREBALRE

THE YEAR 33,270 42,824
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T AL :

Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 33,377 42,870

Non-controlling interests FEP2E I 1 R 2 (107) (46)

33,270 42,824

MERSEEGRAR —EBC=FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mra MBI R

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022
—EC_=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment S ] 13 1,031 1,250
Investment properties HEMSE 14 64,838 66,710
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(@a) 7,986 10,815
Goodwiill BES 16 135,001 135,001
Other intangible assets Hmp&E 17 32,292 45,734
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVELERAREZ
profit or loss — debt investment HBEE—BFRE 22 2,100 2,100
Deposits e 20 657 2,020
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE EE 26 2,715 2,205
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 246,620 265,835
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 14 16
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 19 36,705 50,916
Contract assets BHEE 21 29,338 25,301
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FE{HFUE « 2 M E A
JE W R IR 20 14,929 15,897
Tax recoverable AR R IE 8,085 5,527
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELERAEZ
profit or loss — listed equity investments BEE—- EmRAKRE 22 2,206 4,205
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIER 23 466 1,020
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEEE 23 316,145 309,773
Total current assets MBEEEE 407,888 412,655
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables, other payables and accruals FERNE S8R - EAth e AT
TRIE K JE ST RRIE 24 68,657 69,160
Contract liabilities aHEE 25 52,143 54,190
Lease liabilities HERE 15(b) 6,267 7415
Tax payable FEB 18 9,468 8469
Total current liabilities mENEEAE 136,535 139,234
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 271,353 273,421
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERRBAE 517,973 539,256

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e MR R (E)

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Issued capital
Share premium account

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Other reserves

Proposed final and special dividends

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing R & 5 %t £ T2 Hf

Director 2%

FRBEE

H & 3R
BHAaR
HEAE
ELEBIAR R
FRBAERE
BEFE

R
BATREREARGER
BEBITRA

P tn i 18 AR

RIB A IR I A (0 82 B =t 81 %
B2

H i f# e

R R 3 5 A Rl A B

FEFE I MR T
ks

2023 2022
—E-=F —=EFE-=

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET AT

24 - 39
25 1,397 1,407
15(b) 2,889 4612
26 7,688 10,107
11,974 16,165

505,999 523,091

27 24,702 24,949
27 47,147 53,104
27 (5,454) (6,204)
424,776 418918

11 13,493 30,882
504,664 521,649

1,335 1,442

505,999 523,091

Mr. Leung King San Sunny £ £ $ %t &£

Director 2%

MR EER AR

—Eo=H5RH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—ZF — =4+ —-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
AHEA AL

Shares held

Share ¢ d ) inal and Non-

lssued  premium  share award Goodwi ; ¢ Retained Cia controlling

capital accoun profits S inte

Notes

At T January 2022 24949 53104 (6,011) 5335 (7.227) 746 952 43113 27,180 522,141 1488 523629
Proftfor the year REEET - - - - - - - 47011 - 47011 (46) 4695
Other comprehensive income for  AEEEM2EMA :
the year.
Exchange differences on BEBNERREL L
translation of foreign ERES
operations - - - - - - (47141) - - (4141) - (4141)
Total comprehensive income AEER2ERALE
for the year - - - - - - (4141) 4701 - 4870 46) 484
Purchase of shares held underthe B BB HIIR {3 28
restricted share award scheme  HEIE FIREY 8 - - (1,250) B B - - - - (1,250) = (1,250)
Vesting of shares held under the BRIk (3 2@ T BT
restricted shareaward scheme ~ RIDRE 28 - - 1057 (1057) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements Ry RE% o 8 - B - 1177 B - - - - 1177 = 1177
Final 2021 dividend declared ER-F--FRERE = = = = = - = w sy ) -
Interim 2022 dividend “RCERHRE 1 - - - - - - - (16066) - (16,066) - (16,066)
Proposed final 2022 and special
2022 dividends 11 - - - - - - - (30,882) 30882 - - -
At31 December 2022

24949 53,104 (6204) 5455 7220) 746 (3,189 423133 30882 521,649 1442 523091
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mEERSBR(R)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—ZF —=F+—-_A=+—HILFE

At T January 2023
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for
the year:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Share award arrangements

Final 2022 and special 2022
dividends declared

Interim 2023 dividend

Shares repurchased

Proposed final 2023 dividend

At 31 December 2023

RZFZ=£-A-H
AEERT
AEREMBALA

BEBNEBRELL
EXZE

AEREEUNER

BEARHRARE
SHEE TR
ARHIRG R EET
BRAGE

Ri7 E= o
SRZZZZERER
ZZCERRIRE

i 3

+=A=+-A

2

2
2

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREAE AR
Other reserves
Hfbit
Shares held
under the Share- Proposed
Share restricted based Exchange final and Non-
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill Reserve fluctuation  Retained special controlling Total
capital  account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends Total interests equity
REF
RHRH Bk
KB i3 EX RER Finit
BRTRA ROEER SE2RR ARGEE HERE GREE KRR REEN  BIRS a7 B ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEn THx TEnr TEx TER TEx TEnr TEx TER TEn  TEn
(note29)  (note29)
(Wit29)  (Mfsz29)
24,949 53,104 (6,204) 5,455 (7,227) 746 (3,189) 423133 30,882 521,649 1442 523,091
- - - - - - - 33,350 - 33,350 (107) 33283
- o = - - - 27 - - 27 = 27
- - - - - - 27 33,350 - 33377 (107) 33,270
- - (1,130) - - - - - - (1,130) - (1,130)
- - 1,880 (1,880) - - - - - - - -
= = = 1488 - - - - - 1,488 = 1,488
- - - - - - - 27)  (30,882)  (30,909) - (30,909)
- - - - - - - (13,607) - (13,607) - (13,607)
(247) (5957 = s - = = E = (6,204) = (6,204)
- - - - - - - (13,493) 13,493 - - -
24,702 47,47 (5,454) 5,063 (7,227) 746 (3,162) 429,356 13,493 504,664 1,335 505,999

MR EER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—ZF — =4+ —-A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance cost

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments at fair

value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment, net
Fair value losses, net:

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Investment properties
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment of trade receivables, net
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in contract assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, other
payables and accruals

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid)

Net cash flows from operating activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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[SaRERN

(@)}

O O O

2023 2022
—EC_=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
37,783 51,432
469 397
(14,604) (5,950)
(284) (421)
(6) (1)
1,219 2,332
1,872 80
640 862
7,540 8,064
1,066 837
13,442 10,624
1,488 1,177
50,625 69,433
2 20
13,145 (6,061)
2,331 (457)
(4,037) 327
(542) 5481
(2,057) (475)
59,467 68,268
(9,036) (7,559)
8 (71)
50,439 60,638




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERTRER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 8 —Z —

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank interest received

Dividends received from listed investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss — listed equity
investments

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank
deposits with original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of shares held under the restricted
share award scheme

Shares repurchased

Principal portion of lease payments

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

=F+=A=+—BILFE

RETBAEZHENRE
HEE
REFHREZRERE
B WERTTFI S
BRAVFELBSARLZ
EHREREEA
BEYE BELREHEAB

HEME - BFE R&H
R B S 5IA
HERATFELESE AR
Z 5B EPTS IR
— EWRARE
EEMRITEZRD
WiER R HI A BB =(EA
Z BB IRIT I FOR D
/(1 10)
RERBFRE(FAA) 2
RenEFa
METHRE2RERE
BEAR I ZE 3
AN
fE @D
HENKNAEHD
EfRE
ERFE
BEERIMAZHAERE
HE
ReRERAREEEZ
2, (hd) FH8
FNZREREFREEE
EXREEH 7 FEFR
FRZHASRERARS
aE

2023 2022
—E-=F —=EFE-=

HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET AT
50,439 60,638
14,604 5,950

284 421
(423) (939)

6 1

780 1,009

554 173
(136,165) 83,096

(120,360) 89,711
(1,130) (1,250)
(6,204) -
(7,582) (6,948)
(44,516) (43,289)
(469) (397)
(59,901) (51,884)
(129,822) 98,465
210,969 116,497
29 (3,993)
81,176 210,969

g ZmEEERA A B _=FFTR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{Z—ZF — =4+ —-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EBE-=F g
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReREAREEEHHR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HREMBIKAKRATZ
consolidated statement of financial position HekERBEEE 316,145 309,773
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity U 85 R EIH5 A B8 =18 A
of more than three months when acquired ZEIRIRITF K (234,969) (98,804)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEReERERMATLZ
consolidated statement of cash flows ReRFERBECEE 81,176 210,969
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY T

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise application software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software (including Software as a Services (“SaaS")
product offering) with implementation and ongoing support
services; the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"),
cloud services and other related value-added services;

provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development
(including SaaS product offering); provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; and provision
of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and ongoing support services; and

property and treasury investments.

NAEHR

PMEASREEERARIIRARER
ks 2 BR AR - HFEMiltERALRN
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° ANA &) & B & % i 2 7
BISEIE BB 1005 BUE B 2 B 1042 o

FAAEEREATERERR

AEH¥RHCERBEHLE TS
BRE BREREUEFEERELREE
TR CEEBEMS (AP BE
B AR TS (TR AR TS ) 2 M 4
fE) s BIRE T8 5 R ([GETS]) -
i RS & b 4B RE I (E RS ¢

REEMBE (TEABER]) BRT
REBRERRNMER (HHEEH
TFRNAR TS fm ()  IRELE AR
RABREE S ER RN IR
REHERAMRERMEEERR
Mo WMIABRRG  BEERFEX
RS &

MERBBRE -

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries MBARZESR

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AAREEMBRARZFBEOT :
Issued ordinary

Place of incorporation/  share capital/

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

registration and
business

3 A 311D
EEMH

registered

capital
BRTEERE/
R A

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FRAARERFESZED L
2023 2022
—g-=f —2--

B S

Principal activities

TEXRH

Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong LB 1,000%TT REER
EBERAEE/BE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
International Limited B Non-voting deferred © development and
B R BRAF HK$5,000,000 implementation services,
LTER2AT investment holding and
ERERELO treasury investments
5,000,000 7T REEAMBBRRATRER
REMMRS  REERR
EBRE
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Sale of computer networks
International Trading (Shanghai) A E1/ i B A9 capital US$200,000 and system platforms
Company Limited © At RE KR A HEERRERZR YA
HBZREKREARES (L) 200000 T
BRRAY
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Provision of system and network
(Shanghai) Company Limited ® A B/ B A9 capital US$3,500,000 integration services
TEMBERRRARARO BRNEL R R0 N 8% & R
3,500,000 7
Computer & Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding and treasury
Investment Limited Hong Kong LTEkIET investments
RERAER/BE REERKEBRE
C&T (Guangzhou) Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Property holding
Limited BB LTaEk2ET BEDE

Hi (BN REBRRA

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

NAER (&)
MR z2E R (&)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Place of incorporation/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
FEMKL FERR ERTEBRE/
EEM R A APTEERAEREOL FEER
2023 2022
—E-= “E-F
C&T (Hong Kong) Investment British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited Hong Kong LT@R1ET HEME
KBRLHSE/BE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions Limited BB L3EA% 1000078 7T development and
R EHERAR implementation services
RUEEARBRBAT RBRE
RE R
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions (Shenzhen) Company A B,/ B A9t capital US$1,128,000 development and
Limited © A R B YR AR implementation services
B8 (RN BRAFY 1,128,000 7T RUEEARBRBATRBE
Btk
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of human resources
Resources Limited BB L3EAR 1000078 7T management
MEEREEERAR REANBRER
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
Software (Hong Kong) Limited &7 AR 10,0008 7T application software and
B R GE s (B8) BRAA related operation
RECEHERAR
1HEEE
Global e-Business Services (BVI) British Virgin Islands/ Class AUS$1,600 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400 REER
EEREAEE/BE  ARI00ET
BXB400ETT

MR EER AR

—Eo=H5RH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MBARIZER (&)

Issued ordinary
Place of incorporation/  share capital/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
HEMKL/ FERR ERTEERE/
EEM R A APTEGERAEREOL FEEH
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Global e-Business Services Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,010,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
BEETHERBEBRAR &S @AY 101000078 7T application software services

REC B EARSE

Global e-Trading Services Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,501,000 100 100 Provision of e-business related
BESRBARAR BB LR 2,501,000 T services, including government
electronic trading services
RUESTEHRERY -
DEHNETE 5 RE
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
BB Non-voting deferred © application software and
HK$300,000 related operation outsourcing
£ 1/ % 3,000,000/ 7T services and investment
ERERELO holding
30000078 7T RECEEMHERALIER
ZEMIRB AR
REEKR
Platinum China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Trading of computer software
B A% 10,0007 7T licences, provision of

training, implementation
and maintenance of software
services, and investment
holding
EESHAMFITE
REEMAEN - BHER
HERBARIZEZR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MBARIZER (&)

Issued ordinary
Place of incorporation/  share capital/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARYLERR ERTEERE/
EELY A fRAE EAREERAERAILE FEER
2023 2022
—E-= “E-F
Platinum Software Systems PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Trading of computer software
(Shanghai) Company Limited ® R /s B fu it capital US$200,000 licences, provision of training
HeBHZ5(LE) At RE KRR and implementation,
ARARY 20000075 maintenance and support
services

BEEEMEMRTE
AR R BB A R

HERTERS
Sanyo Extended System Services  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100 100 Provision of computer support
Limited BB T BAY 10000007 7T and programming services,
—HRRESHERAT and investment holding
REERTERERSS
RS DA R 32 B 1 R
Sanyo Extended Data Systems Hong Kong Ordinary HK$180,000 100 100 Provision of computer support
Limited BB L BAY 1800004 T and programming services
“HNRERBRAR REERTERER
Rtk
LBt ERARY PRC/Mainland China Registered and paid up 100 100 Provision of enterprise
R capital US$450,000 application software and
MR E KR related operation outsourcing
4500003 7T services
RECEERTHR
BEEEN R

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. DEIER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MBARIZER (&)

Issued ordinary
Place of incorporation/  share capital/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
business capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARYLERR ERATEBRE/
EEM AR A EARAEERAERAIL FEER
2023 2022
—E-= -
RIS E M ORP) BR A Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
R 38 R% 25000278 application software and
related operation
REELRERRM R
HEeE
CISC Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,652,950 80 80  Provision of products, solutions
G T8 % 365295075 T and consulting services on
cyber intelligence, and cyber
security

REBEDRENBEZ LN
Em - R R R RS

(@  The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture @ ZMBARDNREPBIEREMARIINE
under PRC law. B
()  The subsidiaries are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned (b) ZEMB AR IRERBEAEZEMA—RH
enterprises under PRC law. INEBERE -
(©  The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, (0 ZEUFHASEREZELERELER
carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or N BEZE RS ZERN TEEZS
vote at any general meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, WHERBRRAGREXHEEBAS K
the holders of the deferred shares carry the rights to receive a return RE EREZER - Wit EARER - RLE
of capital after the holders of the ordinary shares have received a BROFEANEGEREBRFEAEARERE
sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share. 3 AR CER & ££1,000,000,000 % TT 14 1A &R
BEXR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group or
are of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

NAER (&)
MR Z2E R (&)

& Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited
Sh - ERFTE B A RIS R AR R EE R
g o

EREINHEERLSEHAREFRNES
BRIEXE BRAKEEEFEEZR
MAXBEAEBEBREEERZARFN
BAR EERRFINEMMBEARZE
He<sRBENITE-

SRR
mEEXE

ZEVBRRIBEATESAMAE
([BAGMAS)BEM 2 BEMB RS
HR([BEMBREERL ) (BEhBEM
BEREMBHRELER FEGHEN(TEH
BERTERD RERE)  AKBEFEAA
&Pz WERTEFMRE - ZFWHERRAK
BELRAERE  ERAFEFEZ
REMERE A FELBER ANRZWBEE
EHRI c ZEMBHRRTIAE T ([HBT])
25 BRREMEN AEREANRER
AEREITAL -

mEEE
RAVBRREBEARARENE QA
(W AEEDBE_T_=%+_#
=St RALEFEZUBHRER -HBRAR
ARRAEZELAFEREFHNER (5%
BUHEER) EAKEEB2HEREHR
EBMARAZFERAREHRZAE
W Bt EBUREHRZEN (XK
BEETRAENATEREHRAHE
BCRAREN) ZEZEFRR  AAKH
REZBERZIERIE-

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights

results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest and
the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12
Model Rules

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two

2.1

2.2

mREXE (&)
REEE (M)

HAREREMB AR ZZEHE - ABUR
EREREE (BRERE) BFE  E[F

2R N B N R B SRR AR
EAREBREZ A FERBILMELERE
S ARZBMNEER - BEREME2EK
ABRZAREEERY  BHENAEE
EERHENREEXREMT ZEERK
ENoBERaIRE G (RERBR
miE)

EREERKEZ2E

AEBERAFEE 2 75K B IR A
THEA RARIERT 2 BB M B HRE R -

BARBREERE 75 REAA

BESHENE 1R R SHREIRE

BB BREENER B

EPLACHES)

BBQIENESH (BAIA)  Bif@irles

BAGHENE R (BIR) KEE-RFELZ
BERAEGEZ
EEHE

BEGERE R (BAIR) AEHFHE-ZH=
BRI

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Group has
disclosed the material accounting policy information in note 2
to the financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement technigues and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. Since the Group's approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact
on the Group's financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —_Z£_=

F+—-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(0

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions.

Prior to the initial application of these amendments, the Group
applied the initial recognition exception and did not recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. The Group has
applied the amendments on temporary differences related to
leases as at 1 January 2022. Upon initial application of these
amendments, the Group only recognised (i) any deferred
tax asset for all deductible temporary differences associated
with lease liabilities (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available), and (ii) any deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets that
had a material impact on the overall deferred tax balances
at 1 January 2022. The quantitative impact on the financial
statements recognised on the application of the amendments
is summarised below.

22 R ERERKEZ2E (A)
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% BRITERFE 125 BT X)X A

—RBELCEERBREHHBZ
ﬁ@ﬁfi ERBETERF 125
NEEROIIMEREE - EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z—_=%+_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BREREEZ2EE (F)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(©  (Continued) © (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position: Hra BRI R 2 -
Increase/
(decrease)
#m, G
As at
31 December
2023
BZE
—E-=
t=A=t—H
HK$’000
FH&T
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Deferred tax assets FEIEF IR A EE (@) 710
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIAE & 0] (699)
Net assets BEFE 11
Equity RS
Retained profits (included in other reserves) RE&EH (GFAEMBRFEE) 11
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRAHEA ARGER 11
Total equity ks 11
Note (i): The deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liability arising from WeE(): BAEE2FK  HRNEARMNHEE
lease contracts of the same subsidiary have been offset in the BREENRETHIEEENELTR
statement of financial position for presentation purposes. BHEE BERMBEARARTESE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE—_=%+_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(©)  (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

22 R ERERKEZ2E (A)

Increase

1% hn

For the
year ended

31 December
2023
BZE

—_E_-_=
+=—A=+—8H
IEFE
HK$’000

FTEx

Income tax credit FriS i % 11
Profit for the year AN S i A 11
Attributable to: AT AL FEAS -

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

The adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 did not have any
material impact on the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of
cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

ISENEIEZ =N 11
FEE I IERE RS =

11

RWE B EAFE 1257 (BT A)
WTEHHE T _=—FRrR-_FT_—
F+-_A=+—"BULFEERBENE
RRAEBEBRBREREARBER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12 /nternational Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception
from the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising
from the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development. The amendments also introduce disclosure
requirements for the affected entities to help users of the
financial statements better understand the entities’ exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current
tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods
when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of
known or reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the
Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model
rules, the amendments did not have any impact to the Group.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when
they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the 2020
Amendments’)'*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)'#
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
£ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
G As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e, 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right
to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The
amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in its own equity
instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a convertible
liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments
further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or
before the reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early application
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is
required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain
transition reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative
information as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and
interim disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —_Z£_=

2.3

24
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether
a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it
shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component
of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTBUR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) XBEHEEE (FE)
The Group determines that it has acquired a business when EASBWEN—HEHREERE —IE
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a BAR—HEERRE  mMME2XREE
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the BEEHNENBEAN R  AIRECKE
ability to create outputs. —IHE ©
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets EASEWE —BEBE - FREBESAE
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation o RUEE B Bl 2 OB IR IR AR R AROR
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances R AE M BEERARE  UELE
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the BXABERER  BRESRBWES T
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree. FENFZRENTELIR -
I the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held MEBEHOPEERET  LAFAEZBRA
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any BREWERR A TFESHE - KA
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. SIBHMERERNERERE o
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer WS 77 16 T 8238 2 R S AR E RN IE
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent AHZ A ERER - Th’\*ﬁﬁfﬁ—ﬁﬁéi
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value BEZIAREEATEFZE  AFEE
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent FREETHER DEAERZHANRE
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and TEEMTE  BEREFIRERNTIRER -

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the EEYIEKATE  EEERE B
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised WRA R R AR EE AT
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s BEZHBB RN ER 2 A FEEE

previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable HBE TSR BRI FEERAAEAEZ
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this ZRE o MZNREBRAEMIAR 2 BFERET
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net 10 E%EJ—Z?%TEZA”?@ =B B
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in BREBRRNERBZEWE Y E -

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any R HERE - BB AR E [ ZEHR
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment EEEFE HEATFHEITRENR
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances NEBEMHEANBEAREETEREES
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs AT RE R ER - Al B AR E TR o
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the SERTZA=T—HETHEBZEER
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business BAR - RETHREAR  REBEFFF
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the BACEZEWEE B EEETEE AT
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, EHEEZHRMGTER 2 AEE SR
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, CEABNNIRSEEEMCARN MR
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are AEEHMWEEXBRERESEAETHZSE
assigned to those units or groups of units. Bk EA AR -

Bl ZMmEEFR A — T FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2.4 EXREFBEE (E)

EBaotREE (&)
REDBBTERFBEEHZREELE
fir (| e ELBAAR) 27 KE S HE
E - HRSEE BN (SRSEEBMIMER)
2 AW El & B IK A R BB ISR R
EEE - BRI BRR ZAEBRTER
R EE -

MEESEERCELBEN (KREEE
BAAR) MMBZEMZBDEHC K
HE AIEBEELEABEBMBZRE
5o BN EXBHEB B ES T AZE
BZREE EXERATHEZEE  T)
*Eﬂ“‘ﬁfru”j’%%ﬁ&ﬁﬂ% ARG EL B
DR EEETHE -

DEREGESHEEHEZBE

RIZE-—FRMMBL SRS EM
ZEFEBEUFEREFSH (€5
ERERIF05]) AT WEELEZHER
WEFEREAFHEBEIE RATENE
WELAFEIREK  ZEBHENESS
e BEMBAXIEBmERAM R
BHEXERERABZASELEMWRE
BT eRBmRiER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset and liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed

in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment

testing for non-financial asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

0) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBUER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and
20%
Computer equipmentand  20% to 33'/,%

software

Furniture, fixtures and other  18% to 25%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including

right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial

recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 5
to 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises lease

liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing

the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately in the
statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of offices and car parking space (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

HE (E)

AEBEREBAA
EAREMBEEEBAAN  AEERAER
e (REBHEETR) SASERE
PEREEHELNETRE -

PIAARSEEY REBREERGEAMEH
BARE D RRLEAHNEERELSEEHE
g -BEHNBEEHENIEEENIOR -
AEBERBHEBYEERSNTNRED
fEr&EEXSD - HEWARBEHRARNIRE
AORDIBRY St ABERNWRAR - RER
HEaME RERLTHREHERE
AR ERKRA TG ABHEEENERR
B YRERAZER T EER SHES
A HARE IR AR AR A ER R
YA

HEEEEMB RS D E R K E RS
BEABANHEFSREHEEANK -

RERHMMBEE
NSmARTE
MBBEN S HERE DB R ERIZEH
A ERRAFELEBEARNMBE
= o

RN EHERE - M EED BEURR TS
BENGHRERERH M AREEEX
FUHEENEHRN - RABBAME
RO EAKE D EAAITRE AL ER
EEAMEXRDZENREKE SRR
AREBZAFENE (8 758 E W IR
RPFELBRBEAR) RHGEAAGFEHRBKE
EoUEEBABMERDKAKECERA
TTHRRETNENRKE 5 R FRE T XK
AR IENBRIZT BB RS EL
FISHABENRR ZHEBRE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")

for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the

Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a

restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme”and deducted from equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position

comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBUER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or

constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating

to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTBUR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition WAER
Revenue from contracts with customers REFEFAHHKA
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control REREPEHNKARE GRS H 2
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that @}%’?E TEFPRER MASERBRAEEH
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled TEHR AR R RZEE MR E IS
in exchange for those goods or services. HRAE o
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, WEHNREBRSAZEE AHERBEARSE
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will .)5/\(‘12)5@;*“ B RIS - DAIRELG
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to ERESHRESFETMHT - TERE
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract TR E A RBRER BT EAR - B
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant FHEAEREMRB < THBEEZEEESFN
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised R BERRFTKRERAIEITSELES
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable A BB I

consideration is subsequently resolved.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of software and GETS HEEMMEERGRBITETFE S RE
services is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset AR EEZESEE TR R ER B

is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods and EARXNERERGE) ER -

services.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services R B IR ER R TT 3 K &R K AR 75 LA K JE AR AR
and application services (other than sale of goods or the provision BUHEE M RHEZERBRIN 2K
of maintenance services) is recognised over time, using an input AR—ERBAFERBALTEEETK
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the BIIRBEEMER BAASERNE
service, because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an Bl 35 N o8 = P BE 2 Bl i ok N ok & E i 4
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, FIWEE kB RISERKBEREAREE
or the customers simultaneously received and consumes the benefits RIENFZE W AEERTEBRETE
provided by the Group. The input method recognises revenue on WEEMFEITH TESEL IR AHETE
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a HETZEAREMEL A - fln
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the IRIR BB A B0 B B A AN AR 3 SE AR AR 75 1 5T
satisfaction of that performance obligation, for example, based on the KBRS L B RE R U ©

proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs to complete satisfaction of the services.

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised RIEHERESHBRARBEEL, RER
over the contract/service period on a straight-line basis because REGHERR RAARRF RRER K
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits HEAREERMHEAN R -

provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources R B H AR A
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease 8 & W AP FE BE A9 F R D B B R R o
terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBUER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets
If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer

before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the contract terms, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to
impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets. They are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to the consideration
becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a

payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL ()

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Contract costs
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments
The Company operates a restricted share award scheme. Employees

of the Group (including directors of the entities comprising the
Group) receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (‘equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2.4 EXREFBEE (E)

BRI

BREXNMEAEE Dx BERRERE
FEEMBKRAIN - WA AT 2EER
RAEFPBTANMELENKAER R
BE:

(@ MAAEERBARAEIRNAHLE
HEenEEXRMAE-

b) ARALEBKARET (HFERET)
RRENBEEZERBUAELEREA
PrEEm °

(© FATERHRYE o

BB HWRANBERRIRA R AL (E
EERBERRREBBEERF—20)#
LA - b B MBI E £ S -

RAD SRR 2

ARBHRA —HARGIBD RZEEHE - K
SERES (BRAKEETEERZES)
SUWEABR D XN 2 E - e B R H
RIGF AR ET A (REGEERS]) -

HEBETZREERER S ZRATIRE
HERZRAFEFE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee

benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it

had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of unvested shares held under the restricted
share award scheme is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EREFTBER (&)

(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)
In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related

asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group concluded that certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services is recognised over
time because the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The fact that another entity would not
need to re-perform the services that the Group has provided to
date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group's performance as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the services for certain contract revenue
from solutions and integration services and application services
because there is a direct relationship between the Group's effort or
inputs (e.g., actual costs incurred) and the transfer of services to the
customer. For example, the Group recognises revenue on the basis
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs to
complete satisfaction of the services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property and industrial
property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property/industrial
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property/industrial property, that it retains substantially all the
significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
taken into account any changes in tax legislation, interpretations and/

or underlying assumptions.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use of a cash-generating unit requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023 was HK$135,001,000 (2022:
HK$135,001,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
useful lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises certain contract revenue from solutions and
integration and application services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services at the end of the
reporting period. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services may be measured by reference to the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs to complete satisfaction of the
services. Significant assumptions such as the duration and other
project specific factors are generally required to estimate the total
costs to complete satisfaction of the services. The estimates are made
based on past experience and knowledge of management and/or
relevant project personnel.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable

inputs (such as market interest rates) when available.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable

operating segments as follows:

(@)  the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise application software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software (including SaaS product offering) with
implementation and ongoing support services; the GETS, cloud

services and other related value-added services;

(b)  the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development (including SaaS product
offering); provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services; and provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and

ongoing support services; and
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(©)  the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted
profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group'’s
profit before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
other income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange
differences, net, corporate and other unallocated depreciation, and
corporate and other unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and

other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
(note )

Intersegment sales

Other income and gains, net

Recondilation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconcillation:

Unallocated interest income

Unallocated otherincome and
gains, net

Unallocated foreign exchange
differences, net

Corporate and other unallocated
depreciation

Corporate and other unallocated
£Xpenses

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconcilation:

Corporate and other unallocated
assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconcilation:

Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities

Totalliabilities

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$257,504,000 (2022:

HK$268,719,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

of profit or loss.

(a) RK&EDI
Application Solutions and Integration
Services Services . Total
ERRE Y WEVELT ag
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BfELE 148,509 155,399
& EREAEERRZEAKA
257,504,000 70 (Z T = = & :
268,719,000/ 7C) °
a BREEGABERAZEAHiEK

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net of
HKS$16,271,000 (2022: HKS13,642,000) in the consolidated statement

AR U255 58 516,271,000 8 T (=

MR GEEERA

: 13,642,000 7T) ©

—Eo=H5RH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEER (E)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Operating segments (continued) (a)

Solutions and Integration

Application Services Services Investments Total
FE R Bk BARRRERRH kg g
2023 2022 2023 2023 2022 2023
B ZE-CF CEC-E —F CZEB-:= & -g-=
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
TR Thn TR TR THER TR TR T
Other segment information: HbAHER
Net fair value losses on RENZATESS
investment properties FE - - - - (1,872) (80) (1,872) (80)
Net fai value losses on financial BATEEEEAE
assets atfairvalue through LIBEENTE
profit orloss BEE - - - - (1,219) (233) (1,219) (233)
Amortisation of other infangble assets  EMEEERH 5,673 6,494 7,769 4130 - - 13,442 10624
Depreciation il 232 247 1,020 %3 - - 3,344 343%
Corporate and other unallocated tEREBRAE
depreciation e 4,836 5490
8,180 8926
Impaiment of rade receivables NERERAERL
recognised in the consolidated EWESEAE
statement of profitor loss, nett AE 827 799 239 38 - - 1,066 87
Capital expenditure™ BARRR 78 40 202 ) - - 280 660
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMBAAE
capial expenditure™ BARRH 143 m
423 939
o Including impairment of trade receivables recognised in the * PRERGEERRMERKBEER

BR %5 5 80 iR SR 5 R K 5 KRR
DEZEKRESEFRESD A
1,311,000 7T (=& = =4 : 1,129,000
BIT) k42200080 (Z = —F ¢
183,000/ 70) * ARG A BR KT
BRREERARBE S BRERFTR
RERK RS 5 802 U E 5 Bk 2
Bk E 5 5l & 4840008 T (=2 ==
£ : 330,000 7T) K 183,000/ 7T (=

consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HK$1,311,000 (2022: HK$1,129,000)
and the solutions and integration services segment of HK$422,000
(2022: HK$183,000), respectively, and reversal of impairment of trade
receivables recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss attributable to the application services segment of HK$484,000
(2022: HK$330,000) and the solutions and integration services
segment of HK$183,000 (2022: HK$145,000), respectively.

T 4F 114500078 70) °
e Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and ** BARMRY BRENEDE BB R -
equipment.
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) i EEHR
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) REIREEFZWEA
Hong Kong and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
BEREMER/HE HER ag
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZE-= “F-—% C"E-=E  —F - “E-cE 2o
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T AL T Titn Ti#n T
Segment revenue: APUA
Sales to external customers BEFHRER 209,320 215547 48,184 53172 257,504 268719
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WAERTIAR TR A X
customers. % o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FRBEE
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-_F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 132,042 147,803
Mainland China HE R 109,106 111,707
241,148 259,510
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHIERBEEER NIREE
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments FrfE 2% « & R I K5 &8
and deferred tax assets. BTARBRERBEE -

g ZmEEERA A B =FER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, KEHHER (F)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Information about a major customer (0 —BFEXFZEHR
Revenue from transactions with an external customer RE—BINABERPRZ 2 WALAE
amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue: SEBUA 10% 3k A £ -
For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from a BE-T-=F+=-A=+—8H
major customer of HK$78,048,000 (2022: HK$82,743,000) was EEFE - RE—BXEXPZK
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the A %78,0480008 L (ZFE ==
application services segment and the solutions and integration 82,743,000/87C) - BESEIIRE 2
services segment. FIRERARTE D EAMEAT R R E
R D HBHIEFRS -
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - Htt R AR W& F 5
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTIAT
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHHEA 255,615 266,735
Revenue from other sources REHMRIFEBA
Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ % 2 & WA B5E K
and interest income from treasury investments  EI§1& & 2 F B U A 1,889 1,984
257,504 268,719

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE—_=%+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HWARIKSFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHBA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFBEAER

For the year ended
31 December 2023

Segments

Types of goods or services

Sale of goods and provision of
software and GETS services

Provision of software
implementation and related
services, and IT solutions
implementation and related
services

Provision of SaaS product
offering and maintenance
services

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong and others
Mainland China

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue
recognition

Goods and services transferred
at a pointin time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

BE-Z-_=%+=-AH
=+—HILEEE

?
L

Emm R ER
HEEm R EHRETR
KT E T & 5 k%
PSR 1 B o S AR B AR
REARERT REE
K AR AR %5

REEMAIRBER R
HEEIRTS

KEEFAHN
LN

ih @5
EBREM
HRE i
RKEEFALH
AU A

BRRARE
RE—FREEE m N RS
R — R A EERS

KEEFPAKH
L PN

Application
Services

P& FA R 3%
HK$’000
FET

Solutions and
Integration
Services
RFRR
&R R
HK$’000
THT

Total

R
HK$’000
TERT

27,183 4,514 31,697
48,181 50,049 98,230
77,417 48,271 125,688
152,781 102,834 255,615
108,286 99,364 207,650
44,495 3,470 47,965
152,781 102,834 255,615
27,183 4,514 31,697
125,598 98,320 223,918
152,781 102,834 255,615
MR EER AR T =F5H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HWARIKEFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHWA (F)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DIFWAER(E)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Segments

Types of goods or services

Sale of goods and provision of
software and GETS services

Provision of software
implementation and related
services, and IT solutions
implementation and related
services

Provision of SaaS product
offering and maintenance
services

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong and others
Mainland China

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue
recognition

Goods and services transferred 723 — R R B2 & @ I AR 75

ata pointin time
Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

BE-_Z-_—_%+=H
=+—HLEEE

2

Emm R % &R

HEEmRERTER
BT E T & 5 k%

Gt 1 B e AR R RS

REARSERTRENR

K AR AR %5

Pe p X ¢ B AR A5 2 am e
MR AR TS

KEEPAHH
LGN

& T 45

BB REM

B A3

KEEF AKX
L PN

BRRARKE

A — B 5 ] O 88 3 AR 75
KAEEFBHN
A

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Application
Services

F& FA AR %5
HK$'000
TAT

Solutions and
Integration
Services

BRTRR

KRS
HK$'000
THET

Total

R
HK$'000
TAET

32,848 10,612 43,460
48,572 51,639 100,211
75,960 47,104 123,064
157,380 109,355 266,735
110,166 103,604 213,770
47,214 5,751 52,965
157,380 109,355 266,735
32,848 10,612 43,460
124,532 98,743 223,275
157,380 109,355 266,735




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Sale of goods and provision of software and
GETS services

Provision of software implementation and
related services, and IT solutions implementation
and related services

Provision of Saa$S product offering and

AR 75

maintenance services

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision software and GETS services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied upon
product/service delivery, where payment in advance is
normally required, and the balance is generally due within 30
to 60 days from the date of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30
to 60 days from the date of billing.

K AR AR5
R BRI EE fn S e

5. WA - B R a3 EE ()

REEFEHNBA (B)

i) DHFBWAER ()
TRETHABSHINENEE
RARERECERR/BASHE

2023 2022
—m— = e

HK$'000
THET

HK$’000
TERT

SARSHITANRED
EREREA

$HE S MR R &
BN E T2 5 R

R ¢ B i S AR R AR A
REMBHRRRTT RE M

3,378 2,715
18,584 19,239
32,228 32,268
54,190 54,222
(i) EAOEE
EBRASEROEERNER B
T

HEEmRIEHREHRKTEFE
SR
BHET—RRERRERXF1%&
ER G —MEEELAMNK MEH
—R BRI HRBE30E 60 HRNE|H -

TR B B R AE R
BHOEE—REREREARMEZE
B mAR—REFALRER SR
sH30& 60 H AFH -

M EGEEERAR T =FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2023 —Z_=4F+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30
days from the date of billing. Generally, a certain percentage
of payment is retained by respective customers as the
Group'’s entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the respective contracts.

Provision of SaasS product offering and maintenance services
The performance obligation is generally satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payments in advance are normally
required before rendering the services.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

5. WA B A R W8 (&)

REEFEHNBA (&)

(i) BHEMFE

TEHE MBI RAFR T RE S KGR
R
BHOBEE—RBERHERENERZ
Ao AR —RE HRE R BES
30R AR —RERT  TFE
FRERENETANL AAKE
RERANRINENBRRERF
HEE W HANE THEARS RS
BEWRERE -

FE (R BT AT AR 75 2 i 